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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.  My name's John Liu.  I

          5  have the privilege of chairing this Committee.

          6                 Just for those of you who are here

          7  for the first time, if you do wish to testify today,

          8  please fill in one of these sheets that you can take

          9  from the Sergeant-at-Arms.

         10                 We are convened today for the purpose

         11  of holding an oversight hearing on pedestrian safety

         12  in New York City. Pedestrian deaths caused by motor

         13  vehicles have been documented in New York City as

         14  early as 1898.

         15                 This past month, this past March

         16  seemed to be a particularly bad month for

         17  pedestrians.  Six were killed on two consecutive

         18  weekends in March.  The people who died ranged in

         19  age from 25 to 71 and the accidents happened all

         20  across the City.

         21                 A little over a week ago, a

         22  73-year-old retired teacher was killed by a hit and

         23  run driver while returning home from a Passover

         24  ceremony.  The teacher's husband was hit by the same

         25  car and was left in critical condition.
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          2                 The statistics seem to indicate that

          3  the streets are getting safer somewhat for

          4  pedestrians.  The number of pedestrians killed has

          5  dropped significantly from a high of 952 in 1929, to

          6  now fewer than 200 annually since 2000.

          7                 Despite these seeming dropped and

          8  improved statistics, I believe that everyone would

          9  agree that too many pedestrians are still being

         10  killed on the streets of New York City. Recent

         11  Department of Transportation statistics show a

         12  decline in pedestrian deaths between 1990 and 2005.

         13  But it also shows a 6 percent increase from 2005 to

         14  2006, from 154 to 163.

         15                 We certainly hope that this is not

         16  the beginning of a trend.  It's too early to tell at

         17  this point.  But there are proactive measures that

         18  we can take.

         19                 It also seems that a few

         20  intersections account for a majority of injuries and

         21  fatalities.  According to Transportation

         22  Alternatives, a group that we'll be hearing from

         23  later today, later this morning, just 10 percent of

         24  the intersections account for a vast majority of the

         25  accidents and fatalities.  These locations are
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          2  located across five boroughs and include Canal

          3  Street in Manhattan, Flatbush Avenue in Brooklyn,

          4  Roosevelt Avenue in Queens and the Grand Concourse

          5  in the Bronx, and Highland Boulevard in Staten

          6  Island.

          7                 The Department of Transportation has

          8  many programs intended to decrease pedestrian deaths

          9  and injuries, and should be commended for

         10  instituting those programs.  Most of these programs

         11  target pedestrians attempting to educate everyone,

         12  from school children to seniors, about how to walk

         13  safely on the streets of New York.

         14                 On the other hand, it should be noted

         15  that walking in New York City should not require an

         16  instruction manual.  Many of these programs are

         17  targeted at pedestrians.  The question is, what

         18  programs are being targeted to drivers?  State law

         19  does require drivers to yield to pedestrians in

         20  intersections.

         21                 In many cases where a driver kills a

         22  pedestrian, that driver is not charged with anything

         23  or given simply a summons. Do we need to toughen the

         24  laws relating to pedestrian fatalities?

         25                 We are joined by members of this
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          2  Committee, Council Member Larry Seabrook from the

          3  Bronx, Council Member Daniel Garodnick from

          4  Manhattan, and Council Member Oliver Koppell from

          5  the Bronx.  And we are -- let me invite Deputy

          6  Commissioner David Woloch from the Department of

          7  Transportation and Ryan Russo, the Director of

          8  Street Management and Safety, also from the

          9  Department of Transportation, who we'll hear from

         10  first.  Then hear from the family members of

         11  unfortunate accident victims.  They will have

         12  important input into the process we're undertaking

         13  today.

         14                 And the reason we're having this

         15  hearing is very simple.  As the Mayor points out, we

         16  are going to experience, in New York City, a

         17  substantial increase in population in the coming

         18  years.  And even as our City population grows, we

         19  are also experiencing an aging of the population,

         20  where more people need to rely on safe streets and

         21  safe sidewalks to walk, to get to and from where

         22  they're going.  It's not just about cars and trucks.

         23    It's also about people being able to safely walk

         24  to and from where they need to get to.

         25                 And so, this is why we have to pro-
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          2  actively plan for the future, for now, as well as

          3  the future.  And we look forward to having a very

          4  constructive dialog with the Department of

          5  Transportation, family members who have been

          6  affected in the most tragic of ways, and

          7  transportation advocates and community members who

          8  have important things to say about this.

          9                 At this time, let me turn the floor

         10  over to Deputy Commissioner David Woloch.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Thank

         12  you, Mr. Chairman.  Good morning. I am David Woloch,

         13  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs at the New

         14  York City Department of Transportation. And with me

         15  here today is Ryan Russo, DOT's Director of Street

         16  Management and Safety.

         17                 Thank you for inviting us here today

         18  to focus on pedestrian safety in New York City.

         19                 First, let me begin my stating that

         20  efforts to better protect pedestrians are really

         21  DOT's most critical mission. Our transportation

         22  network is complex, and we're tasked with

         23  effectively balancing and prioritizing the needs of

         24  pedestrians, mass transit users, cyclists,

         25  motorists.  But while our street space is shared by
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          2  many, New York is above all a walking City, and

          3  safety is our top priority.

          4                 We've done a lot and have come a long

          5  way in ensuring the safety of pedestrians in our

          6  City.  Over the past 15 years, pedestrian fatalities

          7  in New York have declined at a rate more than three

          8  times the national average.  The number of

          9  pedestrians killed in the City dropped by 56 percent

         10  from 366 in 1990, to 161 in 2006.  Over the last six

         11  years, pedestrian fatalities have been at their

         12  lowest levels ever, since the City started keeping

         13  track in 1910.  This dramatic decline is largely a

         14  result of the City's comprehensive approach to

         15  safety engineering, education and enforcement.

         16                 Systematic safety engineering is the

         17  most important means at our disposal to protect

         18  pedestrians.  Based on a review of accident data,

         19  recommendations from the Police Department, local

         20  elected officials, the public and other

         21  organizations, DOT selects locations each year for

         22  traffic safety improvements.

         23                 There's no single engineering tool

         24  that can instantly make pedestrians safer

         25  everywhere.  Consequently, we conduct an extensive
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          2  historical accident review at each location to

          3  identify those factors that contribute to accidents.

          4    We then develop a comprehensive package of target

          5  improvements, that will address what the problems

          6  actually are.

          7                 These improvements include short term

          8  measures that can be implemented quickly, as well as

          9  long term capital projects.             Short term

         10  measures involve redesigning intersections, calming

         11  traffic by narrowing roadways with signs and

         12  markings, signal changes and installation of speed

         13  reducers.

         14                 Long term capital measures like

         15  sidewalk extension or neckdowns, must be implemented

         16  by the Department of Design and Construction.

         17                 In this regard, perhaps our most

         18  notable safety engineering efforts were on Queens

         19  Boulevard, once known as the Boulevard of Death.

         20  From 1993 to 2006, Queens Boulevard was the site of

         21  70 pedestrian fatalities.  We completed two studies

         22  of different sections of the Boulevard and

         23  implemented many short term improvements, including

         24  longer traffic signal cycle lengths to provide more

         25  pedestrian crossing time, the implementation of
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          2  Leading Pedestrian Intervals to allow pedestrians to

          3  establish their presence in the crosswalk, the

          4  elimination of vehicular traveling on the service

          5  roads to slow speeds, the installation of pedestrian

          6  fencing and the elimination of vehicular traffic at

          7  three subway sidewalk interfaces under the elevated

          8  stations of the number 7 line.  These measures

          9  produced immediate results.  Since 2001, there's

         10  been a dramatic decrease in the number of fatalities

         11  along the corridor.  In both 2005 and 2006, there

         12  were only two pedestrian fatalities.  And to date,

         13  there have been none in 2007.

         14                 In Downtown Brooklyn, DOT has acted

         15  on many of the recommendations of the Downtown

         16  Brooklyn Traffic Calming report. These measures

         17  include reducing the number of travel lanes, adding

         18  medians and left turn bays, adjusting signal

         19  timings, adding bicycle lanes and on street parking,

         20  all to discourage through traffic and vehicular

         21  speeds.  We've also planned for significant capital

         22  work recommended by the study, including 250

         23  neckdowns. While we had initially anticipated that

         24  these capital improvements would be implemented

         25  sooner, the amount of work being done is substantial
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          2  and unprecedented.  And the underground water and

          3  utilities were much more complicated, than we

          4  originally believed.

          5                 Construction has now been divided

          6  into two phases, with the first phase in our capital

          7  plan for Fiscal Year 2008 and fully funded at 5

          8  million.  It includes the construction of neckdowns

          9  at 101 of the locations at 43 intersections.

         10                 I'd also like to point out several

         11  other notable pedestrian safety enhancements over

         12  the last year.

         13                 On Van Duzer Street in Staten Island,

         14  to address concerns about speeding, DOT developed a

         15  marking and signage plan that narrowed the roadway

         16  from two to one travel lanes, and installed a speed

         17  board to advise motorists of how fast they are

         18  traveling.

         19                 As part of our continuing program to

         20  improve pedestrian and vehicular safety around

         21  inter- modal transit hubs, we implemented

         22  improvements at two additional locations under

         23  elevated subway tracks in Queens on 31st Street at

         24  36th and 39th Avenues. These improvements included

         25  the installation of raised concrete refuge islands,
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          2  to provide safe space for waiting bus passengers, as

          3  well as the installation of gates to prevent

          4  vehicles from accessing the lane between the

          5  sidewalk and the refuge island.

          6                 In the Bronx, we initiated a pilot to

          7  study the installation of reduced speed limit signs

          8  around ten schools.  And we'll soon be implementing

          9  a second phase of the study at ten additional

         10  schools in the Bronx, Queens and Brooklyn.

         11                 In Manhattan we implemented the Times

         12  Square Shuffle in November, by closing the vehicle

         13  cross over between 7th Avenue and Broadway.  And

         14  will accordingly, be able to increase pedestrian

         15  space in the area by 50 percent.

         16                 In Brooklyn, as part of the Downtown

         17  Brooklyn Project, we reduced the number of travel

         18  lanes on Vanderbilt Avenue, from four to three,

         19  between Dean Street and Sterling Place. This

         20  improvement slows down traffic, regularizes traffic

         21  movements and provides more space for cyclists.

         22                 Last year, we also began testing

         23  pedestrian countdown signals at five locations, one

         24  in each borough.  We're now in the process of

         25  evaluating their effectiveness.
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          2                 Finally, on Court Street in Brooklyn,

          3  we took a new approach to traffic by using calming

          4  signal modifications that successfully reduced

          5  vehicular speeds and volumes to make the street more

          6  pedestrian friendly.  We plan to pursue similar

          7  measures at other locations across the five

          8  boroughs.

          9                 Other examples of our many traffic

         10  safety engineering initiatives can be found in our

         11  Safe Streets NYC Traffic Safety Improvements in New

         12  York City, which is available on our website, and

         13  which we'll provide to each Committee member today.

         14                 We have several other projects

         15  already planned for implementation later this year.

         16  We will redesign 9th Street in Brooklyn to calm

         17  traffic, provide a bike lane and simplify turning

         18  movements.  And at Grand Army Plaza, we've developed

         19  plans to build three new pedestrian islands and

         20  install five new crosswalks to provide safer access

         21  to this increasingly popular Brooklyn landmark.

         22                 We also look at neighborhoods

         23  comprehensively, especially as they experience

         24  growth and land use changes.  In July, we will begin

         25  a study of Hell's Kitchen in Manhattan, recognizing
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          2  it as experiencing significant residential and

          3  commercial growth, while continuing to be one of

          4  Manhattan's major transportation hubs.

          5                 We've also sought to address City-

          6  wide safety issues.  We've implemented our

          7  Pedestrian Bridge Safety Program to address

          8  conditions at the exits of many of the City's

          9  pedestrian bridges.  Accidents involving children

         10  riding bicycles over pedestrian bridges and into

         11  traffic, prompted us to study the conditions of

         12  these bridges, and to design methods to prevent

         13  future accidents.  We implemented a variety of

         14  treatments to improve safety at these locations,

         15  including the installation of sections of slalom

         16  fencing at the bottom or (sic.) Exit ramps to

         17  encourage cyclists to slow down or stop prior to

         18  entering the roadway, improved signs and markings

         19  and the installation of experimental pedestrian

         20  activated traffic signals.

         21                 Safety engineering is also being

         22  strategically targeted at schools, as children are

         23  one of the most vulnerable groups of pedestrians.

         24  We're moving forward on unprecedented traffic

         25  calming, as part of our Safe Routes to School
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          2  Program.  After studying the areas and accident

          3  histories around the City's 1400 public, private and

          4  parochial elementary and middle schools, we selected

          5  135 priority locations.  Every priority location was

          6  thoroughly studied, and reports were completed in

          7  November of last year, detailing specific short and

          8  long term safety recommendations.

          9                 We've already made over 80 percent of

         10  the short term improvements at these locations.

         11  This includes the installation of 24 traffic signal

         12  improvements, 56 speed reducers, 200 school

         13  crosswalks and almost 2,000 new school warning

         14  signs.

         15                 Additionally, plans are under way for

         16  significant capital work on the streets and

         17  sidewalks around these schools.  In total, the

         18  reports recommended over 775 new neckdowns, and 80

         19  new pedestrian medians and refuge islands, all told,

         20  an enormous amount of construction.  This effort is

         21  requiring a new approach by DOT and the Department

         22  of Design and Construction, and work under the first

         23  contract, will begin later this year.

         24                 As this work moves forward, our

         25  commitment to children's safety will not stop.  In
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          2  the coming years, we will perform similar work for

          3  another 135 elementary and middle schools. And also

          4  40 of the City's 400 high schools. I should note,

          5  however, that we've not neglected work around other

          6  school locations.  We have, for instance, installed

          7  36 speed reducers around other schools since June

          8  2006.

          9                 While these on street engineering

         10  improvements are important, we're also looking to

         11  dramatically expand conflict free pedestrian space

         12  in the City.  Last year, we created the Willoughby

         13  Street Pedestrian Plaza.  In an area with low

         14  vehicular volumes and rampant illegal parking, we

         15  closed off streets and added tables, chairs and

         16  planters.  We took away some roadway space, but in

         17  doing so, we created a street that now caters to the

         18  high pedestrian volumes and large lunch crowds,

         19  providing new safe spaces to walk around or to enjoy

         20  a meal.

         21                 We also created a similar space in

         22  front of Peter Cooper Village on 1st Avenue, in

         23  response to pedestrian safety concerns from the

         24  community, and Council Member Garodnick.  And in

         25  fact, we'll be unveiling it with him later today.
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          2                 In addition to the installation of a

          3  pedestrian plaza to provide an added amenity to the

          4  community, we installed yield to pedestrian signs,

          5  closed the entrance to the service road on the east

          6  side of 1st Avenue to shorten the crossing distance,

          7  and improve the traffic signal operation.

          8                 We've also developed plaza plans for

          9  Astor Place and for Louise Nevelson Plaza in

         10  Manhattan.  And in the years to come, DOT, working

         11  with communities and other City agencies, plans to

         12  reallocate street space in all five boroughs to

         13  create many more of these public plazas.

         14                 However, creating safer streets and

         15  spaces is only part of our efforts to improve

         16  pedestrian safety.  To address behavior of people on

         17  our streets, education is a vital tool.  DOT has a

         18  safety education program with an extensive and

         19  comprehensive program in place to educate school-

         20  aged children.  DOT operates six Safety Cities

         21  located throughout the five boroughs.  Safety City

         22  uses both traditional classroom education, and hands

         23  on practice in an outdoor simulated New York City

         24  street, to teach children about traffic safety.  The

         25  area has realistic pavement and markings, traffic
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          2  and pedestrian signals and street signs, where the

          3  children practice crossing the street safely, in a

          4  variety of situations.

          5                 At the indoor learning center,

          6  students take part in activities designed to build

          7  self esteem and strengthen their ability to make

          8  safer choices.  DOT Safety City has been recognized

          9  nationally with awards from the Ford Foundation and

         10  Harvard University's Innovations in Government

         11  Program, the American Automobile Association and the

         12  Allstate Safety Leadership Program. As part of the

         13  Safe Routes program, parents, children and educators

         14  can now find on line traffic safety maps for every

         15  elementary and middle school, and a traffic control

         16  guide that helps students and parents understand the

         17  meaning of the signs and markings they see every

         18  day.

         19                 In addition, we developed a traffic

         20  safety curriculum in conjunction with the Department

         21  of Education.  And are now working with principals

         22  and teachers, so that the schools themselves, can

         23  provide traffic safety lessons.

         24                 While many of our educational efforts

         25  are geared towards children, DOT also conducts
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          2  traffic safety presentations for people of all ages

          3  throughout the City.  At schools, camps, senior

          4  centers, community centers, health clinics and

          5  community events, programs focus on issues of

          6  pedestrian, passenger and bicycle safety, as well as

          7  the dangers of driving and walking under the

          8  influence of alcohol and other drugs.  Access Safety

          9  City in Washington Heights, also serves older

         10  adults, and people of all ages, with special needs.

         11  We also focus on seniors providing educational

         12  materials at fairs and special events, including the

         13  Age in Action fair, Senior Stroll and Grandparents'

         14  Day.  We work closely with the Department for the

         15  Aging and Health and Hospitals Corporation, to plan

         16  these events, and develop information materials

         17  specifically for the older adult population.

         18                 In addition to safety engineering and

         19  education, the City also focuses on enhancing

         20  pedestrian safety through enforcement.  The New York

         21  City Police Department used its TrafficStat program

         22  to focus their efforts on accident prone locations.

         23  We at DOT also play a role in enforcement by

         24  managing the City's Red Light Camera Program.  The

         25  extended use of these devices, however, has been
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          2  shown to dramatically reduce red light running at

          3  the intersections being monitored with violations

          4  declining by 40- 60 percent, making these locations

          5  markedly safer for pedestrians.

          6                 Unfortunately, our ability to use

          7  camera enforcement is severely limited, even while

          8  red light running and speeding continue to be two of

          9  the leading causes of fatal accidents on our

         10  streets.  We are prohibited by State law from using

         11  speed enforcing cameras and our red Light Camera

         12  Program is significantly restricted.  Last year,

         13  after a seven year effort, we were finally

         14  successful in lobbying the State legislature to pass

         15  legislation, expanding our Red Light Camera Program

         16  from 50 to 100 cameras. However, for a City with

         17  over 12,000 signalized intersections, 100 cameras

         18  are not nearly enough.  This restriction prevents us

         19  from implementing a broader, and much needed

         20  application, of this important public safety

         21  technology.

         22                 Accordingly, we need your help in

         23  lobbying Albany to secure authorization for more

         24  cameras, as well as to allow us to implement a speed

         25  camera program.  They are vital to ensuring the
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          2  safety of not only pedestrians, but motorists and

          3  cyclists, as well.

          4                 In addition to our enforcement camera

          5  legislation, we are also pursuing another

          6  legislative initiative to enhance safety, a Cross

          7  Over Mirror requirement for trucks.  This

          8  legislation is especially important to the safety of

          9  children. When children cross in front of trucks,

         10  they're often too short to be seen from the cab.

         11  This legislation would require all large trucks

         12  registered in New York State, to be equipped with

         13  the convex mirror on the front of the vehicle.

         14  These mirrors eliminate the blind spot directly in

         15  front of the truck, so that a driver will not

         16  accelerate through a green light, if a child is

         17  still crossing the street.

         18                 But our collaboration must extend

         19  beyond lobbying. We also need your help to secure

         20  funding for our many pedestrian initiatives, as well

         21  as your support for initiatives within your

         22  communities.  In many cases, when we implement

         23  pedestrian improvements, such as building neckdowns

         24  or narrowing roadways, we often hear complaints

         25  about the loss of parking, and slower driver speeds.
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          2  Trade offs are certainly involved, but to make this

          3  City an even safer place, they are necessary.

          4                 We also hope that you will continue

          5  to share with us concerns about your communities.

          6  As I mentioned earlier, working with Council Member

          7  Garodnick, we were able to identify and make

          8  important improvements at 20th Street and 1st

          9  Avenue.

         10                 Later this year, we will initiate a

         11  comprehensive study of all pedestrian fatalities and

         12  serious injuries in the City, over the last five

         13  years.  That will give us an even more thorough

         14  understanding of how we can better protect

         15  pedestrians on our streets.  We also must make a new

         16  commitment to pedestrian safety in New York.

         17                 As the Mayor calls on all of us to

         18  make this a sustainable City by 2030, ensuring a

         19  safe pedestrian environment is essential to the

         20  future of transportation.  To provide for more trips

         21  by transit and by foot, we must think of creative

         22  new solutions to further reduce the numbers of

         23  pedestrian injuries and fatalities.

         24                 While our past efforts have

         25  contributed to the dramatic decrease in injuries,
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          2  and the lowest level of traffic related fatalities

          3  in the City streets in nearly a century, we still

          4  believe that even one pedestrian fatality is one too

          5  many. And we will continue to deliver new solutions

          6  and make further strides.

          7                 Thank you for inviting us to testify

          8  before you today.  And we'd be happy to answer any

          9  questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Deputy

         11  Commissioner Woloch.

         12                 I want to let you know that we've

         13  been joined by members of this Committee, Council

         14  Member Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn, Council Member

         15  Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and Queens and also

         16  Council Member Vincent Ignizio from Staten Island.

         17                 We have a number of questions from

         18  Council members. Let me throw a few questions in

         19  your direction.

         20                 The statistics are often cited by the

         21  Department of Transportation, especially the

         22  statistics that show a general decrease in a number

         23  of fatalities.  And I'm glad you said towards the

         24  end of your testimony, that even one fatality is too

         25  many to bear in New York City.
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          2                 I think we have to look beyond the

          3  statistics sometimes.  The victims of these traffic

          4  accidents and fatalities are people, not just

          5  statistics.  And that's why we've invited the family

          6  members to come today, to put a face on the issue at

          7  hand. Because this is really a human issue that

          8  we're dealing with.

          9                 The statistics that you cite though,

         10  are just about fatalities.  And towards the end of

         11  your testimony, you talked about a decrease in

         12  injuries.  What kind of statistics do we have with

         13  regard to injuries?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We have

         15  injury statistics, as well.  For example, serious

         16  injuries have been reduced over the past four years

         17  by 11 percent.  So, injuries have shown a decline,

         18  as well, over the years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Do you have

         20  anything more specific than a general decline over

         21  the last four years?  And what constitutes a serious

         22  injury?

         23                 MR. RUSSO:  Is this on?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.  And Ryan,

         25  just identify yourself for the record.
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          2                 MR. RUSSO:  Sure.  I'm Ryan Russo,

          3  DOT's Director of Street Management and Safety.  And

          4  also wanted, like David, to thank you for the

          5  opportunity to talk about this issue.  We're very

          6  excited that you're interested in the issue.

          7                 Serious injuries have been declining

          8  steadily as well, with the fatality numbers.  And

          9  one of the things we'll learn from our new study,

         10  there's different categories of types of injuries.

         11  They're classified for different types of

         12  seriousness. Our new study will actually give us

         13  more robust data about the more serious injuries,

         14  allow us to look more at trends, allow us to look

         15  more at the causal factors of the serious injuries

         16  and the different types of injuries, and where they

         17  happen.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So do you

         19  care to share some of those statistics?  I mean,

         20  every year this is, I'm sure you know, Ryan, this is

         21  not a new found interest that this Committee has had

         22  with regard to pedestrian safety in this issue, in

         23  this City.  And every year, the Department of

         24  Transportation officials come and give us statistics

         25  about decreasing fatality rates with regard to
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          2  pedestrian accidents.  But we've also, in the past,

          3  asked about injury statistics.  And so, you talk a

          4  little bit about the injuries in the testimony, but

          5  is there any more information you can give us, apart

          6  from a general decrease in serious injuries?

          7                 MR. RUSSO:  I mean, here's an

          8  example, pedestrian injuries went from 12,237 in

          9  2002 to 10,875 in 2006.                           CHAIRPERSON

         10  LIU:  And again, what is a serious injury?

         11                 MR. RUSSO:  I'm sorry, this is all

         12  injuries.  But serious injuries, I do not have the

         13  data with me today.  We're happy to get it to you,

         14  but that showed similar declines, as well.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  And then you

         16  also cite a number of specific examples, location

         17  specific examples, of work that the DOT has

         18  undertaken over the last couple of years to improve

         19  pedestrian safety.  Is there a general master plan

         20  for making these sidewalk changes, enhancing the

         21  safety of the pedestrians through signal timing,

         22  even simple things like, repainting cross walks?  Is

         23  there a general plan for this or, I'm sorry, is

         24  there a conservative effort in terms of with the DOT

         25  delineating specific locations that need to be
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          2  worked on?  Or is this just kind of done whenever

          3  the Department gets around to it?

          4                 MR. RUSSO:  You know, I think the

          5  toolbox of things we use to improve safety, is a

          6  large one.  And there are many different parts of

          7  the engineering that we do.  And some are City wide

          8  in nature and systemic.  Others are, we have to look

          9  at them location by location.  So, there are

         10  elements of the work we do that are planned.  But I

         11  think part of the lesson is that we are a changing

         12  City, and we have to show a degree of flexibility,

         13  and I think a continued willingness is to try new

         14  tools and use new tools.  And that's how, over the

         15  past few years, we believe we've reduced some of

         16  these numbers that we're talking about.  But to

         17  continue to reduce them further, I think we need to

         18  continue to use and try new strategies.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, you're

         20  absolutely right.  It is a changing City.  In fact,

         21  it is getting more crowded and there are more people

         22  who are going to rely on sidewalks to get to and

         23  from where they need to get to.  And to rely on them

         24  being safe.

         25                 What would be an example of a City-
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          2  wide, I think you called it a systemic program for

          3  increasing or enhancing pedestrian safety?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

          5  one of our safety projects, one that we talked about

          6  in the testimony, is what we've done around

          7  pedestrian bridges, and I think it's a good example.

          8    We initially started to focus on that particular

          9  problem, as a result of a number of accidents that

         10  happened in the borough. And in this case, those

         11  accidents involved children on bicycles. But there

         12  was a recognition that safety around pedestrian

         13  bridges was not just about cyclists, it was about

         14  all the users, and it was a problem, not just at

         15  these particular locations, but one that we needed

         16  to approach on a City- wide basis.  So, rather than

         17  just solving the problem at a particular location

         18  where a tragic accident happened, we looked at

         19  pedestrian bridges City- wide, and developed a City-

         20  wide approach.

         21                 Another example that I talked about

         22  in the testimony, involved the improvements that

         23  we've made on Court Street in Downtown Brooklyn,

         24  where we made a number of signal timing adjustments,

         25  that have provided more pedestrian crossing time and
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          2  slowed down vehicles.

          3                 We recognize now, and this is part of

          4  what we're going to be focusing on this year, that

          5  we need to think about, well, how else can we reap

          6  the rewards of the progress we made on Court Street?

          7    Where else can we apply similar treatments?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  I think

          9  we also have to be realistic about some of these

         10  programs.  The City- wide examination of the

         11  pedestrian bridges, that really was in response to

         12  children being killed as they rode their bikes off

         13  of those ramps and on to oncoming traffic and very,

         14  very tragic.  We had a number of them in Queens, as

         15  well as in other boroughs.  The pedestrian bridges,

         16  though, I think that the number of bridges that the

         17  City made improvements on, were relatively limited.

         18  I mean, we're talking about a handful of pedestrian

         19  bridges, that work was done on.

         20                 MR. RUSSO:  It was more than

         21  certainly a few dozen, about 30 bridges around the

         22  City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  The bulk of

         24  the pedestrian volume in New York City happened on

         25  City sidewalks --
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          2                 MR. RUSSO:  Of course.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- And crossing

          4  streets.  So, let me come up with a couple of

          5  examples that have been brought up by the public and

          6  also by this Committee.  The idea of building out

          7  the sidewalks at intersections, it would not

          8  decrease parking spaces, which is something that

          9  people are concerned about.  At the same time, it

         10  would decrease the distance that pedestrians would

         11  have to walk to get from one side of the street to

         12  the other.  And it also enhances safety in general,

         13  because it requires motorists to make wider turns.

         14  And whenever the turns are wider, they're able to

         15  see people more clearly.

         16                 So, is there a program for widening

         17  the sidewalks at various intersections?  And keep in

         18  mind, it is somewhat, it has been demonstrated

         19  somewhat solidly that a large, large number of the

         20  accidents involving pedestrians occur at a

         21  relatively limited number of intersections in the

         22  City.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         24  answer to your question is yes.  And almost like an

         25  engineer, you provided a good description of
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          2  neckdowns.  And it's something we're applying in a

          3  number of different circumstances, but I think the

          4  most important program that we have now, we're

          5  applying that tool.  And as I said in the testimony,

          6  in an unprecedented way, is part of our Safe Route

          7  to School Program, which I think we'd all agree, our

          8  special school locations, are special locations,

          9  that we should be focusing all of our efforts on, or

         10  a good part of our efforts.  And as a result of our

         11  Safe Route to School Program, we will be placing

         12  hundreds and hundreds of neckdowns over the next few

         13  years, around dozens and dozens of schools, to start

         14  with, and then we'll be moving on to another group

         15  of schools.  And I can't emphasize this enough, this

         16  is something that has not happened previously, this

         17  aggressive, City- wide capital intensive, traffic

         18  calming work.  And I think it's an extremely

         19  important program and one that we want to again,

         20  over the next few years, continue to roll out,

         21  continue to obtain more funding to put into this

         22  program.  And I think it's a cornerstone of our

         23  traffic calming efforts.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure, and let me

         25  just say that this Committee and everybody in this
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          2  City, I think, would agree that enhancing

          3  pedestrians safety for little school kids in the

          4  vicinity of the schools, is of paramount priority.

          5  And so, of course, the safety around the schools

          6  should be enhanced, and the DOT should undertake a

          7  great deal of its efforts.

          8                 There are also lots of other places

          9  in New York City where pedestrians have a tough time

         10  walking safely.  And we need to direct those

         11  efforts, as well.

         12                 Now we realize that a lot of this is

         13  capital intensive.  And it's not going to come

         14  cheap.  But we have also been sitting here a few

         15  times already, listening to very vague ideas of the

         16  programs, the constructions that the DOT's

         17  envisioning.

         18                 So, at some point, it's incumbent

         19  upon the Department of Transportation, to give a

         20  very solid plan.  How many locations will be

         21  completed this year, next year and the following

         22  year?  Because up until now, there is still no

         23  measurement, there's still no measure by which we

         24  can gauge the performance of the DOT, with regard to

         25  these objectives.
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          2                 So, are there goals?

          3                 MR. RUSSO:  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRMAN LIU:  So, give us an example

          5  of a goal.

          6                 MR. RUSSO:  For this year, we have a

          7  contract in place working with the Department of

          8  Design and Construction to implement capital

          9  improvements at 12 of the Safe Route schools. Now I

         10  don't have with me that particular package of

         11  improvements, we can certainly pull that together

         12  for you.

         13                 CHAIRMAN LIU:  Right.

         14                 MR. RUSSO:  But I think at this

         15  point, and again, there's other projects and

         16  programs we can talk about.  This program, and I

         17  think it's true, it's something we've been talking

         18  about for the past few years.  It is now real.

         19  We've made 80 percent of the short term

         20  improvements, and that represents hundreds and

         21  hundreds of short term initiatives around the 135

         22  schools.  And we will be beginning the capital work

         23  again, as I said, at 12 of the schools this year.  A

         24  program like this has not been done anywhere else in

         25  the country.  It certainly has not been pursued by
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          2  the City before.  And it's certainly one of the most

          3  dramatic and expansive traffic calming efforts

          4  around the country.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Well,

          6  that's, I mean, that is a sign of progress, no

          7  question about it.  But there are others in the City

          8  who would argue that the pace needs to be picked up

          9  quite a bit.  It's been three years since the Safe

         10  Routes to Schools Program was announced by the DOT.

         11  And in these past three years, we're talking about

         12  installing 24 traffic signals, 56 speed reducers or

         13  speed humps, and painting 200 school crosswalks and

         14  installing 2,000 warning signs.  But this is, we're

         15  talking about 135 priority schools.  And there are

         16  more among the 1200 schools in New York City.

         17                 MR, RUSSO:  Absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And that's just an

         19  example.  And so, we would think that there needs to

         20  be a faster plan on improving the pedestrian safety.

         21

         22                 So, the goal for this year, is

         23  looking at 12 of these schools.  And making the

         24  capital improvements.

         25                 MR. RUSSO:  Not looking at.  We --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm sorry.  Not

          3  looking at, but implementing --

          4                 MR. RUSSO:  We looked at.  We have

          5  plans.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

          7                 MR. RUSSO:  We've already implemented

          8  the bulk of the recommendations in these reports.

          9  All that implementation has happened over the past

         10  year at all 135 schools.  The part that remains, is

         11  the capital work, and I think it would be -- we

         12  would all love to snap our fingers and be able to

         13  implement that work immediately.  And we've talked

         14  about this before.  When you do this kind of capital

         15  construction, because of what's underground, it

         16  becomes very complicated work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  That's fine.

         18    So then what would be this first round of 135

         19  priority schools, how many years is it going to take

         20  to fully implement those recommendations?  I mean,

         21  because 12 schools this year, I mean, in a City like

         22  New York, it just doesn't seem to be a very

         23  ambitious goal.

         24                 MR. RUSSO:  One of the things that's

         25  important to remember, when we say capital
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          2  improvements, it's not all the constructed

          3  improvements.  We have 600 speed reducers at school

          4  locations.  We've constructed in house, 1,000 speed

          5  reducers throughout New York City.  And we've

          6  installed those that came out of the 135 when we did

          7  the study of the 135, when the speed reducer was

          8  recommended.  Often it was built before we even

          9  published the study.  So those things also get

         10  built.  And I think I'd like to come back to your

         11  idea about strategy, but also, toolbox and speed,

         12  the desire for fast improvements and the desire for

         13  us to do things quickly.  And I think what we have

         14  emphasized is the things in our operational toolbox,

         15  and it's a very, very long list.  And I would love

         16  to get into it, about the types of things we do to

         17  calm traffic.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We don't, I

         19  certainly don't claim to be an engineer or to have

         20  any kind of expertise in engineering. I simply ask

         21  how long is it going to take to implement those

         22  recommendations for the 125 priority schools?

         23                 MR. RUSSO:  Well, some of that

         24  depends on whether we gain additional funding.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, I mean, see?  I
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          2  don't even know if it's a funding issue.  I think

          3  that it doesn't sound like there's a comprehensive

          4  plan to fully implement.

          5                 MR. RUSSO:  There's absolutely a

          6  comprehensive plan.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, then so how

          8  long --

          9                 MR. RUSSO:  But I think we have to

         10  have an understanding of what it takes to do this

         11  work.  You need the funding.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.

         13                 MR. RUSSO:  You need contracts in

         14  place and we'd all love to snap our fingers and

         15  immediately have contracts in place. But we all know

         16  there are procurement rules that we have to abide by

         17  working with the Department of Design and

         18  Construction.  And the nature of this work is

         19  inherently complex.  And also something, and I think

         20  this is worth talking about --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Just give me a

         22  minute.  In the past, the bulk of our street

         23  reconstruction program has revolved around large

         24  segments of streets.  So every year we re- surface,

         25  say 800 lane miles throughout the City.  We're able
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          2  to reconstruct a much smaller amount, because that

          3  work is much more expensive, at a few dozen lane

          4  miles every year.  It's when you're doing

          5  reconstruction work, that you have an opportunity to

          6  really change the way that a street works from a

          7  capital perspective.  And that's how it's worked in

          8  the past.

          9                 Now, what we're starting to do is,

         10  we're not waiting for a capital project, a full

         11  reconstruction of a street to happen to make these

         12  kind of improvements.  We are, and between the Safe

         13  Routes Program and the Downtown Brooklyn work, we're

         14  going to have 1,000 neckdowns spread out at all

         15  these locations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now see that's a

         17  good thing.  I mean, just say it then.  That's part

         18  of the plan, to have 1,000 neckdowns completed like

         19  by what, by the end of '07?  Or the end of, I mean,

         20  just give us something that we can point to.

         21  Because we're hearing all these laudable goals.  But

         22  it's been hearing after hearing, and we keep hearing

         23  the same thing, and there's nothing that we can

         24  measure performance by.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As I
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          2  said in the testimony, the first half of the

          3  Downtown Brooklyn capital work. For example, is

          4  going to happen in Fiscal Year '08.  Fiscal Year '08

          5  will start this July 1st and end next July 1st.  And

          6  so by, within 14 months from now, we'll have a

          7  significant part of that capital work coming out of

          8  the Downtown Brooklyn project completed.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  But what

         10  about the thousand neckdowns?  What's the time frame

         11  for that?

         12                 MR. RUSSO:  As I've said, the first

         13  piece of that is happening this year.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, you've only

         15  talked about that Brooklyn.

         16                 MR. RUSSO:  No, no, I'm sorry,  As I

         17  said earlier the first piece of the Safe Routes

         18  capital work, will happen at the first contract is

         19  in place for 12 schools, and we're going to start

         20  that work this summer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right. I just

         22  don't think that these are really complicated

         23  questions.  And it would be very good if there was a

         24  plan to say neckdowns 1,000 locations to make it

         25  safer for pedestrians.  But in order for that kind
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          2  of statement to have any credibility, we need to

          3  have like, is the objective to have that completed

          4  by the end of this year?  Maybe within the next

          5  three years?  There's got to be some kind of --

          6  otherwise it's just a pipe dream.

          7                 Similarly, going back to my earlier

          8  question which still hasn't been addressed, what I

          9  think is a very simple question, and that is, what

         10  is the time frame for completing, for implementing

         11  the recommendations on those 135 priority schools?

         12  If you're saying that the funding is questionable,

         13  and therefore there cannot be a time frame, then say

         14  so.  And then we'll work together to get the funding

         15  in place.  But what's the time frame?

         16                 MR. RUSSO:  Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  How do you get to

         18  that point where all of those recommendations can be

         19  implemented?

         20                 MR. RUSSO:  Sure.  As David mentioned

         21  there were thousands of operational measures

         22  including speed reducers, curb regulation changes,

         23  traffic calming, bike lanes, things we do in house.

         24  And then there's the capital measures.  The

         25  thousands of operational measures at the 135 schools
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          2  will be complete this calendar year.  They'll be

          3  complete before school starts again in 2007.  The

          4  capital work will be breaking ground on about 12

          5  schools, that's our first contract, and we hope to

          6  have contracts for about 20 schools per year.

          7  There's about 123 schools with capital measures in

          8  them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.

         10                 MR. RUSSO:  We think DDC can do about

         11  contracts or about 20 schools per year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, it's a six year

         13  plan to get the first 135 priority schools done.

         14                 MR. RUSSO:  Right.  Funding

         15  dependent, contract dependent, all those sorts of

         16  things, utilities dependent, design, all those

         17  things.  That's sort of the pace we're setting.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So that's

         19  the answer and that's the record that we're looking

         20  for.

         21                 Let me note that we've been joined by

         22  Council Members Michael McMahon from Staten Island

         23  and Council Member Joe Addabbo from Queens.

         24                 I have a couple of more questions.  I

         25  have questions from my colleagues here.
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          2                 There are other City- wide

          3  initiatives that have been talked about and again,

          4  we're not really seeing any substantial progress on

          5  these items.  One is the idea of computerizing the

          6  signals, the traffic signals in New York City.  I

          7  think my understanding is that a lot of Manhattan

          8  has been computerized. What's the plan for the rest

          9  of the boroughs?

         10                 MR. RUSSO:  We've been working on

         11  major corridors throughout all the other boroughs.

         12  I don't have that information with me today.  But

         13  we'll be happy to get that to you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, but I think

         15  it's safe to say that the effort to computerize the

         16  traffic signals in New York City, is substantially

         17  behind schedule.

         18                 MR. RUSSO:  I don't really agree with

         19  that.  We've been making --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Then what is the

         21  schedule?

         22                 MR. RUSSO:  As I've said, I do not

         23  have that information with me today, happy to get it

         24  for you, but we've made substantial progress over

         25  the past few years.  So, I don't think --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think we are

          3  behind schedule on that.

          4                 MR. RUSSO:  We have the most

          5  extensive signal systems around the world.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It's been in the

          7  capital plan for years.  In fact, five years ago

          8  when the Commissioner had me tour the DOT facility,

          9  the Intelligence Center in Long Island City, we

         10  talked about getting all of the signals in New York

         11  City computerized within a few years.  It's been

         12  more than a few years now.  Now I don't have the

         13  exact number of years because it's so hard to tie

         14  the Department down on these kinds of numbers, but

         15  we are behind schedule on them.  And the reason I

         16  bring up the computerized signals is because one of

         17  the things that would be possible with the

         18  computerized signals, is altering the signal timing

         19  during the daytime.  That's my understanding.  And

         20  the value of that is, for example, in rush hour

         21  periods, there's probably a need to make sure that

         22  the traffic is flowing as smoothly as possible.  But

         23  in other times of the day, in the middle of the day,

         24  and later in the evenings and at nights, you might

         25  be able to give pedestrians more time to cross
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          2  certain major thoroughfares.  That would be possible

          3  with the computerized signals.

          4                 Mr. Russo, did you have a comment

          5  about that?

          6                 MR. RUSSO:  We do that, and it's

          7  definitely part of our toolbox, and we're looking to

          8  do a lot more of that.  We use lots of subtle signal

          9  strategies to respond to the different things that

         10  are going wrong or happening on each street.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So, how much

         12  do you do that?  Do you alter the sinal timing

         13  during different times of the day, is what we're

         14  talking about?  For example rush hour versus middle

         15  of the day.

         16                 MR. RUSSO:  Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Like what's an

         18  intersection that you would do that at?

         19                 MR. RUSSO:  Well, you would do that

         20  for a corridor. The example we put in the testimony

         21  was Court Street, where we did that and most

         22  corridors actually have an AM and a PM and an all

         23  other times signal plan incorporated into them.  It

         24  doesn't just need to be a computerized signal.  And

         25  most of them do respond to those situations.
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          2                 But some of the things we've done to

          3  make streets more pedestrian friendly for these

          4  corridors and what we did specifically on Court

          5  Street, all alter the three major components of the

          6  signal.  The first being the amount of time you get

          7  to cross the major street, the large street.  So,

          8  when the signal is green for the big street, the

          9  pedestrians have to wait.  So, we've been reducing

         10  the time for the bigger street.  Like you were sort

         11  of saying, giving more time to cross the larger

         12  street.  That's what we call sort of the split in

         13  the time.

         14                 The second aspect of it is the

         15  progression, the signal progression for a one way

         16  corridor and sometimes two way, the way the signal

         17  progresses down a corridor.  We also call them how

         18  the signals offset from one another.  We've been

         19  changing the offsets, maybe in the off peak period

         20  where there's less volume, where you have a speeding

         21  problem to try to address that, so having the signal

         22  not go down the corridor as fast as it did before,

         23  we've done it on Court Street, we've done it at

         24  other places.

         25                 And the third element that we've
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          2  used, is the cycle length, which is how fast the

          3  signals turn over, which means how long everyone has

          4  to wait at the signal.  It can be 120 second cycle,

          5  90 second cycle, 60 second cycle, it varies

          6  throughout the City.  We've been reducing cycle

          7  lengths as ways to, what that does is, it makes the

          8  signals turn over more frequently and reduces the

          9  amount of jay walking, reduces the amount of time

         10  pedestrians have to wait.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  Suffice

         12  to say, it would be valuable if we could get those

         13  capabilities up and all the parts of this City as

         14  quickly as possible.  And we would like to get the

         15  schedule of that completion.

         16                 Let me know before they're totally

         17  gone.

         18                 We have been joined by members of the

         19  Student Government at P.S. Two from Queens in the

         20  third grade.  They were up there for awhile, welcome

         21  to City Hall and get back to school safely.

         22                 Let me turn the floor over to my

         23  colleagues who have questions.  We have questions

         24  from Council Member Garodnick.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman. I will be very brief because I know

          3  that there are a few questions from our colleagues.

          4                 But first, I wanted to acknowledge

          5  today is obviously an important day, as you

          6  mentioned in your testimony, for the ribbon cutting

          7  of a safer intersection at 20th Street and 1st

          8  Avenue in Manhattan.   And it is particularly

          9  important to highlight that today, I think, and to

         10  discuss that issue, in that it was an intersection

         11  where approximately a year ago today, an 83 year old

         12  woman from that neighborhood was struck and killed

         13  by an MTA express bus turning onto 1st Avenue,

         14  Doctor Ester Levine, who was a long time resident of

         15  that neighborhood.  And of course today, we're

         16  unveiling Streetscape improvements and a Green

         17  Street.

         18                 But what I wanted to talk to you

         19  about and ask you about today is, what formal steps

         20  there exists for the DOT, when an event like that

         21  happens or any, you know, hopefully we will never

         22  see an event like that again.  But if there were a

         23  pedestrian fatality or injury, what is the formal

         24  process for the DOT to investigate and contemplate

         25  potential Streetscape improvements, if there is a
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          2  formal process?

          3                 MR. RUSSO:  Every time there's a

          4  pedestrian fatality, or any fatality that happens on

          5  our streets, whether it's a pedestrian, cyclist,

          6  motorist passenger, motorcyclist, we will send out a

          7  team of people to access that location.  And we will

          8  also continually monitor and access fatality data

          9  and accident data, to help us figure out where to

         10  focus, and what to focus on. Part of the nature of

         11  fatalities is fortunately, that the number of

         12  fatalities has fallen.  A number of those fatalities

         13  happen in places that might actually be safe

         14  locations.  It's a small data set, it's hard to

         15  learn from.

         16                 I think in other cases, we are able

         17  to learn something specifically from a tragic

         18  accident, and can get focused in a way, and can get

         19  spurred in passion.  So, I think it's important for

         20  us to focus on the specifics of accidents, but also

         21  look at the aggregate data, and particularly the

         22  injury data, because it's a much larger set.  And as

         23  I mentioned in the testimony, one of the things that

         24  we're going to be doing, which we really haven't

         25  done before, is to take a step back and in a much
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          2  more comprehensive way than we've been able to do in

          3  the past, look at the entire set of fatality and

          4  injury data, and try to learn more about what that

          5  means about the kinds of locations where accidents

          6  are happening, what do we know about the

          7  pedestrians, what do we know about the motorists?

          8                 But I think it's a continual effort,

          9  but it begins, going back to your question, in the

         10  case of a fatality with us sending staff out to

         11  access a location.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Is that an

         13  on, so I guess what I'm still a little unclear on, I

         14  appreciate the idea and the apparatus that you have

         15  set up, that if there is an injury fatality at an

         16  intersection, that you will go and investigate and

         17  consider ways to make improvements.  And you also

         18  noted that there is a process where you'll look at

         19  aggregate data and say, well, is there a

         20  concentration of events at a particular

         21  intersection.  What I don't understand is, how

         22  frequently you go back to assess, is it a quarterly

         23  basis that you'll go and you say, okay, well let's

         24  look at where we are in the various intersections

         25  around the City for fatalities?  Is it a twice a
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          2  year process, is there a formal process at all for

          3  the DOT to go and look at these things, other than,

          4  and I appreciate that you do look at them

          5  periodically, but is there any formal process

          6  whereby you review this stuff?

          7                 MR. RUSS:  I think that gets back to

          8  one of the original questions the Council Member

          9  had.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm sorry,  Can I

         11  just ask you guys to pull the mic closer, so our

         12  recording devices could be a little more sensitive?

         13                 MR. RUSS:  I apologize.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Just pull the mics

         15  closer.

         16                 MR. RUSSO:  Sure.  The idea about

         17  strategy, what is our strategy and a few things.

         18  One thing is that I think people don't understand

         19  is, how many people and how many units who do

         20  different things, and David got into the scope of it

         21  in his testimony, work on pedestrian safety?

         22  Whether it's City- wide education or signal

         23  strategies or traffic calming and various types of

         24  engineering.  So many people deal with working on

         25  pedestrian safety.  What the sort of bigger strategy
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          2  looks like right now is, really sort of this two

          3  pronged aspect where we've looked at data and found

          4  these corridors and locations where there are

          5  problems, and have gone and addressed them from an

          6  engineering perspective.

          7                 And then the second part is really

          8  the input from you, from the community.  We're sort

          9  of open 24 hours, seven days a week, 365 days a

         10  year, getting input and having locations come to us.

         11    And sometimes it's also in response to a crash or

         12  a speeding complaint and we have locations, Shore

         13  Front Parkway in Queens, where we did metered

         14  traffic calming, Oriental Boulevard.  We'll be doing

         15  Jewel Avenue in Queens, lots of different things

         16  that we do in response to --  so, sort of this two

         17  pronged analysis of data, that shows us the problem

         18  locations that we're constantly getting, and we

         19  appreciate getting.  The thing about where the

         20  strategy has to go in the future and it needs to

         21  evolve, because as you pointed out, fatalities have

         22  gone down, injuries have gone down, we want them to

         23  continue to go down.  And one of the things we had

         24  in the data, was very clear, sort of hot spots about

         25  fatalities, sort of knew where pedestrian fatalities
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          2  were clustered.  If you look at the recent data,

          3  that data, the fatalities are much more diffuse

          4  throughout the City.

          5                 So, the injury data and the serious

          6  injury data and the closer look we're going to do

          7  with the data analysis, is really going to help us

          8  set our agenda going forward.  It's a very important

          9  next step, because the fatality data sort of not

         10  showing us where to go, a key part of that is the

         11  injury analysis that we'll get, and the geographical

         12  data we'll get out of this next study.

         13                 Is there anything else?  Yes, I think

         14  that's it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay.  So,

         16  I guess my understanding from what you said is that

         17  you have sort of an ongoing look at these things.

         18  You have a lot of people working on pedestrian

         19  safety, but there is no, it's not that there's a --

         20  you don't really have a quarterly review, for

         21  example.  You may have particular studies, but you

         22  don't have a particular time frame by which you say,

         23  okay, well, two months have passed.  We're going to

         24  take a look at all intersections in the City and see

         25  if we have particular hot spots here.
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          2                 MR. RUSSO:  Right.  We're tracking

          3  the data and getting updates like every two weeks

          4  and seeing what's happening. And see how it's

          5  trending versus other years.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  That's

          7  great.  I guess the question is, though, you collect

          8  all the data, and I hear that you collect it and you

          9  have it.  But at some point, there has to be a

         10  review of the data and a consideration of what next

         11  steps you might take.  And it would give me great

         12  comfort to know that there is a point in which you

         13  say, whether it's monthly or every two weeks, or

         14  every week or every day, frankly.  That if you see

         15  trending hot spots of injury, serious injury

         16  fatality, that triggers something within the DOT.

         17                 MR. RUSSO:  We're spinning off

         18  projects on this more cycle type basis.  One of the

         19  things we do every year, though, is write the safety

         20  report, The Safe Streets report.  That sort of comes

         21  back and steps back and takes a look at City- wide

         22  date.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  That's the

         24  yearly report?

         25                 MR. RUSSO:  That's the yearly.
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          2  That's a yearly report.  We're spinning off projects

          3  sort of one by one.

          4                 I did remember that the other, the

          5  last point I wanted to make in response to the last

          6  question, this idea about finding the tough

          7  locations.  And one of the things it said was maybe

          8  50 percent of the injuries happen at ten percent of

          9  the intersections.  Sounds like they're clustered,

         10  but we have 12,000 signalized intersections.  Ten

         11  percent of that is 1200.  We certainly have probably

         12  20,000 intersections, so we're talking about 4,000

         13  intersections that you are saying ten percent of the

         14  locations happen at.  That's why we really need to

         15  look at the data, the injury data, move on from the

         16  fatality data and find the tough spots.  We agree.

         17  We have to look and continue to find those locations

         18  where we focus, our frankly, limited resources.  We

         19  have so many bullets in our chamber and we want to

         20  put them where it makes the most sense.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Good.

         22  Last question from me.  I just would encourage, I

         23  mean, I appreciate that there is the annual review.

         24  But to create the formal processes, whereby you take

         25  the data and you just say, okay, we're going to just
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          2  stop now and we're going to evaluate, I think would

          3  be a useful mechanism more frequently than the

          4  annual basis.  And I appreciate that you're

          5  constantly collecting and reviewing and considering.

          6    But to actually formalize that process internally,

          7  might make sense to be able to see at various

          8  specific intervals, whether there are changes.

          9                 The only other thing I wanted to ask

         10  you about was with regard to your comment abut input

         11  from local elected officials or community members,

         12  about potential dangerous intersections, before a

         13  problem actually truly becomes an injury, a serious

         14  injury or fatality.   What is the formal process

         15  there?  Whereby either a community member, let's

         16  just take an example of any of the 51 members of the

         17  City Council were to alert the DOT and ask for

         18  consideration of a particular intersection as to

         19  whether that is dangerous, whether there could be

         20  pedestrian improvements implemented there.  What

         21  should be done?  What would that trigger within the

         22  DOT?  Just tell us exactly what the process looks

         23  like, how long it would take, and what we can

         24  expect?

         25                 MR RUSSO:  Sure.  I think very
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          2  generally, the best route to come to the agency is

          3  through our borough Commissioner offices.  And in

          4  fact, that's part of the reason for having the

          5  borough Commissioner offices, is to have a simple

          6  and clear vehicle for elected officials, for

          7  community groups to come to us with issues.  And

          8  hopefully, they're issues where in anticipation of a

          9  problem, rather than a problem that happened

         10  yesterday.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  So -- go

         12  ahead, finish your answer.

         13                 MR. RUSSO:  But I think for us it's

         14  important not to have that process that's too locked

         15  in and say, you can only send a letter to our

         16  borough Commissioner and that's the way to get

         17  something initiated.  In fact, if you look over some

         18  of the work that we've done over the past few years,

         19  that work has evolved in a number of different ways,

         20  often very positive.  And we've had work, for

         21  instance, in the South Bronx that came through

         22  coalition of the South Bronx churches.  As we talked

         23  about in the testimony, there's been a number of

         24  issues raised in the Clinton area in Manhattan.  And

         25  I think you'll probably hear testimony about that.
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          2  And that's led to us embarking on an area- wide

          3  study.  So, I think the work will evolve in

          4  different ways.  But certainly, the best way is to

          5  go through our borough Commissioner's office.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  I

          7  appreciate that.  I guess I'm not looking to lock

          8  council members into a particular process.  I'm

          9  really looking to lock the DOT into a particular

         10  process, frankly.  Which is that, if we were to

         11  alert the DOT to a particular intersection, whether

         12  it is through a letter to the borough Commissioner

         13  or to the Commissioner, or to anybody within the

         14  apparatus of the DOT, my question really is, what

         15  then can we expect to happen on your end by way of

         16  investigation or consideration of the problem?  And

         17  what would be the time frame that could be

         18  reasonably anticipated for such an investigation?

         19                 MR. RUSSO:  You know, I hate to say

         20  this.  I think it really will depend on the nature

         21  of the problem.  And I'll give you an example.  For

         22  instance, a number of the issues that are brought to

         23  our attention are very localized in nature.  They

         24  are about a particular curbside of a particular

         25  block, about one particular traffic signal and the
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          2  timing at that intersection.  There are other issues

          3  that are brought to our attention and those

          4  potentially could be addressed very, very quickly.

          5  There are other issues that are more of a corridor

          6  set of issues.  Again, going back to the Court

          7  Street example, the timing along a commercial

          8  corridor.  There are other issues that are brought

          9  to our attention that are really more area- wide,

         10  and that's something that, for instance, and again,

         11  using the Hell's Kitchen as an example, that's

         12  something that we're going to have a longer term

         13  study that's going to focus on that area.  So, it

         14  will really depend.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         16  it is issue based, whether they want a new traffic

         17  control, whether it's a stop sign or a signal, it's

         18  very formal and time frames for that.  Speed

         19  reducers, we have a very regimented and well tracked

         20  process to make sure if someone wants a speed hump

         21  on their block, you know the evaluation, and goes

         22  through the process.  So, there's sort of these more

         23  routine operational type ways, and then there's

         24  these sort of bigger problems where we take sort of

         25  a bigger more comprehensive look and develop sort of
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          2  a broader set of mediations.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Well,

          4  thank you.  It obviously doesn't give a precise

          5  answer to the question.  I understand that different

          6  projects take different things.  I guess really what

          7  I'm interested in, we should continue this

          8  discussion perhaps later, is how quickly we can

          9  expect to see somebody investigate the situation,

         10  not resolve the whole problem yet, but to really

         11  come and start the process for resolving it?  But

         12  why don't we leave that aside for now, because I

         13  know that we need to move on.  But I do want to

         14  thank you and also Commissioner Woloch for your

         15  attention to that particularly dangerous

         16  intersection at 20th and 1st, and I look forward to

         17  seeing you later today.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You know, it's

         19  always helpful for the DOT to give some specifics.

         20  And one of the specifics that you could have told

         21  Council Member Garodnick is that if there's a

         22  request for a traffic light study, that's done

         23  within 90 days. Right?  That would answer some of

         24  your questions.  I mean, some specifics is what

         25  we're looking for.
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          2                 MR. RUSSO:  Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I mean that's just

          4  like a simple example.  You could have just easily

          5  responded to Council Member Garodnick with that kind

          6  of response, as an example.

          7                 Council Member Mealy.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Thanks.  Good

          9  morning.  I think I have to piggyback on Councilman

         10  Garodnick.  If there's a pedestrian injury or

         11  fatality, how long does it take DOT to really

         12  examine the intersection, and to see how long does

         13  it take to make it safer, the round about, about

         14  round, I can't say it.  How long will it take, the

         15  turn around?  I don't want to compare, but Queens

         16  Boulevard of Death.  A lot of people are being

         17  injured and some fatalities, I believe 70.  How long

         18  did it take, the turnaround for you to investigate,

         19  then implement?

         20                 MR. RUSSO:  The work we did on Queens

         21  Boulevard was a multi year effort that involved a

         22  number of different phases and a number of different

         23  components, including fencing along different parts

         24  of the corridor, single timing adjustment --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  So each time
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          2  you kept enhancing and trying to --

          3                 MR. RUSSO:  Queens Boulevard is sort

          4  of unusual, a very long complicated corridor to

          5  focus on.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  But you knew

          7  fatalities was (sic.) Happening and injuries.  So it

          8  took, I mean, I think seven years before --

          9                 MR. RUSSO:  There has been ongoing

         10  work on Queens Boulevard over the past decade that

         11  intensified in recent years. But to get back to your

         12  original question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  The

         14  turnaround.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It will,

         16  it will, let me take that back for a second.  We

         17  will not go out and necessarily do a assessment

         18  everywhere there is an injury.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  But you know

         20  if it's one place that is numerous injuries, you

         21  would have to investigate that.  And then implement

         22  something to rectify it, right?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We will

         24  come out and look at every place that there has been

         25  a fatality and we will look at many, many other
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          2  locations as you said, where there's been a pattern

          3  of injuries.  But again, I don't think there is a --

          4  that is if it happens on an ongoing basis.

          5                 MR. RUSSO:  I think maybe it would

          6  help to illustrate a couple of examples.  I'd like

          7  to illustrate just a couple of examples.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, no, no- it's --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  One please?

         10  One.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me just say

         12  that in the case of Queens Boulevard, there have

         13  been a lot of problems and it has experienced an

         14  unusual number of fatalities and accidents.  To help

         15  answer Council Member Mealy's question, it's also

         16  happened at different points on Queens Boulevard, so

         17  the DOT's efforts on Queens Boulevard have taken

         18  place at different times on different stretches of

         19  Queens Boulevard.  And so that's kind of like what

         20  they have done with Queens Boulevard, not to say

         21  that they've stopped looking at Queens Boulevard.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  I know they're

         23  still working, but I would like to know if an

         24  incident like that happens somewhere else, how long

         25  would it take for them to implement safety?  That's
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          2  all I'm asking.

          3                 MR. RUSSO:  Yes.  Some of the things

          4  depend on what you're actually implementing.  But I

          5  do want to give a few examples.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.

          7                 MR. RUSSO:  Okay, I'll give one

          8  example.  Vanderbilt Avenue, which I think we cited

          9  in the testimony is, we've received complaints.

         10  It's in Brooklyn.  We received a complaint in August

         11  of 2005, regarding speeding and vehicles who turn

         12  too fast and turn recklessly on the street.  The

         13  investigation began immediately.  By the time it was

         14  winter, we had a plan to change the street.  Now

         15  over the winter, we presented that plan to the local

         16  community and to the stakeholders who had expressed

         17  interest in the corridor. And right when our marking

         18  season, because what we did was traffic calming by

         19  removing a travel lane with markings and striping a

         20  center median, slowing traffic, helping with the

         21  turns.  Right when our marking season started and

         22  basically by May of '06, that street was completely

         23  redesigned and changed completely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay, that was

         25  good.

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 MR. RUSSO:  So, August '05, and then

          3  we had a new street in May '06.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay, that's

          5  good.  You just brought something else.  I only have

          6  about two more questions.  You say, in the

          7  community, how much heads up do you give community,

          8  or homeowners?  When you implemented the crosswalks,

          9  and I know in Brooklyn, a couple of years ago, I was

         10  not an elected official then, but I was a Block

         11  Association President.  And I had that homeowner

         12  call me and say they are tearing up my street.  I

         13  just redid my sidewalk and now these people are

         14  coming and want to tear up my street.  Do you give

         15  any notice to the homeowner in which you're going to

         16  put a pedestrian walkway in between a full street?

         17  It's a full street and then a small street in

         18  between that needs a crosswalk to another side of

         19  the street.  Do you give homeowners any notice

         20  beforehand?

         21                 MR. RUSSO:  There's lots of different

         22  types of work that we do.  For work that is

         23  particularly disruptive like we're surfacing, we'll

         24  put out the re- surfacing schedule and let the --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  I know that
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          2  for sure.  There were no notices whatsoever.  She

          3  called me at work and I had to take the day off from

          4  work and stop.  And we stopped at for two days until

          5  we got some kind of clarification on who was coming,

          6  who it was, it was DOT.  But they didn't let anyone

          7  know of this.  So I just hope you can look into

          8  that.

          9                 And you said you painted about 200

         10  crosswalks?  How often do you go and assess the

         11  crosswalks that are so badly unrecognizable as a

         12  stop sign?  When do you implement painting them

         13  again?  I know I was the president.  I had been the

         14  president I had wrote the Commissioner a letter said

         15  that some of the crosswalks in Brooklyn needed to be

         16  repainted.  To this day, they are not repainted.

         17  So, that's a safety issue all by itself.  How are

         18  you addressing that?   You only did 200, so far, you

         19  said in your implement.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  A

         21  particular program, but you're raising an important

         22  issue more generally which is a City- wide issue.

         23  We have lots of markings out there, particularly

         24  after a harsh winters, they're going to fade over

         25  time and so re doing them is something that again,
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          2  we have to do on a City- wide basis.

          3                 MR. RUSSO:  Yes.  The crosswalks

          4  cited, they were actually new crosswalks that didn't

          5  exist at intersections, rather than the

          6  refurbishment of the thousands and thousands of

          7  crosswalks that we have.  Broadly, they're

          8  refurbished on a three year schedule, ones that get

          9  more wear and tear, ones that are identified by

         10  stakeholders as having faded, would get refurbished

         11  on a quicker schedule.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay, so I

         13  will be calling you again, because they're calling

         14  me again.

         15                 I have one more question.  As you

         16  already know, it's (sic.) Numerous of organizations

         17  that advocate groups out here that have specific

         18  recommendations to improve pedestrian safety.  Are

         19  you working with any of these groups, as of yet?

         20  And considering their ideals?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         22  we're working with lots of different groups and

         23  again, suggestions get made to us in many different

         24  ways, through many different types of organizations

         25  and whoever you're thinking about, I urge them to
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          2  bring to our attention whatever those issues are.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay.  Thank

          4  you.  Oh, I have one more, please.

          5                 What is the current criteria for DOT

          6  to fixing streets, if it's a sunken hole?

          7                 MR. RUSSO:  Well, again, there's

          8  never a -- a lot of these issues don't have a simple

          9  straight forward answer all the time as much as we

         10  would like them to.  In the case of a sink hole,

         11  where the condition actually has to do with less

         12  with the surface of the street and more with

         13  something that's happening involving the water under

         14  ground, that's an issue the DEP needs to address. We

         15  can come and we can fill pot holes, but if they're

         16  in fact sink holes, the problem is just going to

         17  continue.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  A pot hole

         19  that is -- because numerous, I know three homeowners

         20  helping tremendously.

         21                 MR. RUSSO:  If you have allocation,

         22  give it to us after the hearing and we'll take a

         23  look at it.  We also, in terms of re- surfacing,

         24  which is more of a permanent fix, we have a street

         25  assessment unit that is constantly rating the
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          2  quality of streets to help us think through what our

          3  re- surfacing schedule should be.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          6  Member Mealy. Questions from Council Member

          7  Seabrook.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  They're all out.

         11  Here they go.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Okay,

         13  they're back.  We won't blame that on DOT.

         14                 Just a couple of questions.  Thank

         15  you, Mr. Chairman.  Commissioner, when we talk about

         16  the issue of these injuries and fatalities in all of

         17  the years of my involvement, I've seen, it's been a

         18  constant thing, and it continues, and then there's a

         19  remedial effect to this response, and then after

         20  that another fatality on.  Tell me, in all of these

         21  injuries and fatalities, has the City of New York

         22  been hauled into court on the basis of these

         23  injuries and fatalities as a charge of negligence,

         24  or a wrongful death suits that have been filed?

         25  What is the amount of monies and if there are an
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          2  amount of claims against the City, on the basis of

          3  these corridors that you're talking about, where

          4  these injuries have taken place and where these

          5  fatalities have taken place, that the City has

          6  actually been a part of the suit that has been

          7  brought?  And how much monies has the City actually

          8  had to pay out in terms of its liability, on the

          9  basis of its negligence or wrongful death?

         10                 MR. RUSSO:  I think that's a set of

         11  questions that needs to be --

         12                 I'm sorry.  I'll repeat that.  I

         13  think that's a set of questions that would need to

         14  be referred to the Corporation Counsel.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  But you

         16  have a responsibility as a part of being responsible

         17  as that agency.  Not the corporation.  The

         18  corporation counsel does the legality, but in terms

         19  of the capability in terms of the suit in the

         20  negligence, it's brought on the basis of the

         21  Department of Transportation.  And the corporation

         22  counsel becomes your lawyer.  But I'm saying, has

         23  there been any suits that you all have had any

         24  involvement with or dealing with the law department,

         25  as it relates to paying out any sums?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We would

          3  have to get back to you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Okay.

          5  Because I think that's important, because if the

          6  City is being held negligent on the basis of these

          7  injuries and fatalities, then I think that we need

          8  to look at that, because it says something about

          9  capability as it relates to this, and I think that's

         10  a concern that we have, Mr. Chairman.  That if the

         11  City and the Department of Transportation has the

         12  obligation and the duty to provide safety, and if

         13  we're paying taxpayers' dollars are being paid out,

         14  then we need to address that issue, and I think that

         15  we need to even look at that with you and the law

         16  department as it relates to that.  I think it's very

         17  important.

         18                 Just one other, well, two questions,

         19  one, the other one is what is the regulation and

         20  rules for posting speed limit signs on those

         21  dangerous corridors that you talk about, Queens

         22  Boulevard, Grand Concourse?  How is the DOT to

         23  determine the posting of speed limit signs?  And if

         24  I walked out and took a stroll on Queens Boulevard

         25  and took a stroll on the Grand Concourse, I would be
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          2  able to find a speed limit sign, what, every 20, 30,

          3  100 yards whatever.  What's the procedure?   What's

          4  the regulations that you have for that?

          5                 MR. RUSSO:  Well, a few things.  New

          6  York City has a City- wide speed limit of 30 miles

          7  per hour, unless otherwise posted.  And we post that

          8  at the entrance everywhere to the five boroughs.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So, there's

         10  only one.

         11                 MR. RUSSO:  One sign?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Well, you

         13  said the entrance.

         14                 MR. RUSSO:  Every time you enter a

         15  borough or enter New York City, there's a speed

         16  limit sort of posting sign.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I'm saying

         18  on Queen's Boulevard, on the Grand Concourse, tell

         19  me where the postings are and how many do you have

         20  that says to a person, that might not have got on at

         21  that entry, that might have got on in between, how

         22  would he know the speed limit that he's supposed to

         23  travel?  That's how most people get killed.

         24                 MR. RUSSO:  Right.  The most

         25  important thing in terms of speed, is the design of
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          2  the streets.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I

          4  understand that.  That's not what I'm asking.  I'm

          5  asking you is there rules and regulations that

          6  states that there is a posting of the speed limit on

          7  Queens Boulevard and on the Grand Concourse, more

          8  than one sign, and if there's regulation that says

          9  every 100 yards, every 20 feet or whatever?  I'm

         10  just asking if a person that gets on it at a certain

         11  place, how would he know the speed limit?

         12                 MR. RUSSO:  There's not a legal

         13  requirement.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I

         15  understand it's not a legal requirement, but I'm

         16  saying, so therefore there's one at the entrance and

         17  none in between.

         18                 MR. RUSSO:  I think there are many

         19  signs with speed limit information, when the speed

         20  is, excuse me, when it's different than that

         21  standard 30.  So, I think what we pointed out was

         22  that if it's not otherwise signed, that there's a

         23  standard speed limit of 30 miles an hour.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So, if a

         25  person did not get on at the entrance of coming out
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          2  of one borough to the other, he wouldn't know what

          3  the speed limit is.

          4                 MR. RUSSO: You mean a New York City

          5  resident?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Or a non

          7  New York City resident.  Non New York City residents

          8  drive on New York City streets.

          9                 MR. RUSSO:  And they don't enter the

         10  City?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Well, they

         12  could come by train and rent a car.   And ride from

         13  here to the Concourse and never ever enter.

         14                 MR. RUSSO:  The most effective

         15  engineering --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  The

         17  question is, and probably the simplest answer is,

         18  there is no regulation that you have to post any

         19  signs that says the speed limit, and you post one

         20  sign at the entrance of, and that's it.  And unless

         21  you are required to do that, you don't do that.

         22  That's all I'm asking.

         23                 MR. RUSSO:  Again, it's not

         24  completely accurate in the sense that there are many

         25  places where we have a lower speed limit.  And in
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          2  most cases --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I

          4  understand that.

          5                 MR. RUSSO: -  there is specific

          6  signage posted that refers to that lower speed

          7  limit.  It's not only at the entrances to the

          8  boroughs in the City.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There are 30 mile

         10  per hour speed limit signs posted in a lot of

         11  different places in the City.  But I think, based on

         12  what you're response to Council Member Seabrook's

         13  question is that, his question is, what are the

         14  criteria?  And it sounds like essentially there are

         15  no criteria.  It's just like, at digression.

         16                 MR. RUSSO:  Well, he's asking about

         17  the spacing. One of the things we do often at the

         18  exit ramps of highways, which will have this kind of

         19  regional traffic that I talked about --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I

         21  understand what you're saying, and I'm familiar with

         22  that.  But I'm talking about these corridors that

         23  people are being killed and people are being injured

         24  on the basis of Queens Boulevard and the Grand

         25  Concourse, specific. I'm just saying if I walk down
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          2  those two corridors, will I see more than one sign

          3  posted which states speed?  That's all I'm asking.

          4                 MR. RUSSO:  There are actually

          5  federal standards that we comply with that require

          6  the signs to be every 3,000 feet.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So, every

          8  3,000 feet on Queens Boulevard and every 3,000 feet

          9  on the Grand Concourse, there's a posting of a sign

         10  that says, speed limit 30 miles an hour.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  For the

         12  standard 30 mile per hour, yes.  But I think the

         13  more important point, and this is what Mr. Russo was

         14  starting to say, is that the most important factor

         15  in terms of how fast a motorist is going to drive

         16  isn't what the sing says.  And that's been our

         17  experience and it's commonly accepted that if you

         18  post a speed limit sign, even very frequently, if

         19  the nature of a roadway is one that is wide, that is

         20  open, particularly relative to the amount of volume

         21  that's on that corridor, motorists will go quickly.

         22  And often more quickly than we want them to.  But

         23  the best way to impact speeding isn't necessarily

         24  the signage.  It's the --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Well, you
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          2  can't determine that if you haven't had signs up, so

          3  how would you know?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, I

          5  think --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I mean, you

          7  don't have the signs up that say if the guy knew

          8  that he was traveling beyond, perhaps he'd have some

          9  responsibility and say that I won't do that. But you

         10  can't judge that on the basis that you don't have

         11  the signs up.  How would you know?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         13  we have lots of --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I mean, I'm

         15  just saying --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We have

         17  lots of signs up.  And again, the experience of our

         18  engineers and I think, engineers around the country,

         19  is that even with the signs, if a roadway is too

         20  wide relative to the amount of vehicles that

         21  motorists are going to go too quickly.  And that the

         22  best way to address speeding is not necessarily the

         23  signage, but using, and as Ryan talked about

         24  earlier, other tools in the toolbox, such as the

         25  signal timing.  And often the physical capacity of
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          2  the roadway, whether it's by changing parking

          3  regulations as we did on Queens Boulevard.  I mean,

          4  we had enormous success on Queens Boulevard in

          5  reducing speeds of vehicles.  While we changed the

          6  speed limit, it was not the speed limit that had a

          7  dramatic impact.  What had a dramatic impact was

          8  narrowing the capacity of the service roads on

          9  Queens Boulevard.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I

         11  understand what you're saying and you're probably

         12  absolutely correct.  But what I'm saying to  you is,

         13  that the average driver that drives on Queens

         14  Boulevard and drives on the Grand Concourse, does

         15  not know the speed limit. And you know why?  Because

         16  the policeman asked him and I was standing there and

         17  he said to the guy that was driving, he said do you

         18  know the speed limit on the Concourse?  And he said,

         19  no.  And that's what I'm saying.

         20                 I understand all of the things that

         21  you're talking about and it probably has its

         22  relevance and it's real.  But I'm just stating that

         23  people, once you put a sign up and say that this

         24  that they've actually had warning that this is

         25  there.  And I'm certain that probably in some court
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          2  cases that you didn't put signs up and they went to

          3  court and said, I never saw anything posted. And

          4  therefore, I don't know, and you don't know, because

          5  you said you didn't deal with the law department

          6  You're shaking your head.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No, but

          8  what I do know is there's not a legal requirement

          9  that on every block that there's --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I didn't

         11  say that.  I'm just stating that people need to know

         12  what the legal speed limit is on those corridors in

         13  which they're traveling.  I understand what you're

         14  saying.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Let me

         16  give you a different example.  Everybody and

         17  everybody in this room knows that you should not

         18  drive through a red light.  Everybody knows that.

         19  But we know that, and I'm sure there are people in

         20  this room that have driven through an intersection

         21   --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, you can't know

         23  that for sure.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm not

         25  naming any names.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  The light

          3  could be malfunctioning.  It could be --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That's

          5  true.  That's true.  But people know that you

          6  shouldn't drive through a red light, yet people do

          7  it.  And I think --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, but the large,

          9  the greatest majority of people don't.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And I think Council

         12  Member Seabrook is -- I mean, we just need to move

         13  things along.  It's rather fool hearted for the

         14  Department of Transportation to just assume that

         15  people are going to ignore signs.  When you say that

         16  there are other things, I mean Council Member

         17  Seabrook was simply asking what are the criteria for

         18  posting these speed limit signs? Perhaps not on

         19  every signal street in the City, but perhaps on

         20  these very wide thoroughfares.  And he has a point.

         21  There are people on the Grand Concourse, on Ocean

         22  Parkway, on Highland Boulevard, definitely on Queens

         23  Boulevard, because there are stretches of these

         24  roads that look like highways.  And it's not clear

         25  that it's a common 30 mile per hour road that people
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          2  have to abide by.  Are there people who are going to

          3  ignore speed limit signs?  Absolutely, you're darn

          4  right.  But there are also significant number of

          5  people who will abide by those speed limits, if they

          6  knew, in fact, what they were.

          7                 So, let's not discount the value of

          8  posting these speed limits.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm not

         10  discounting the value, I'm just pointing out that

         11  it's not a panacea.  And again,-

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We're not saying

         13  that either. We're agreeing with you that there's a

         14  whole arsenal, a whole toolbox of things that you

         15  could do to enhance pedestrian safety. I'm sorry,

         16  Council Member Seabrook.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  That's my

         18  point, Mr. Chairman.  I'm glad that you kind of

         19  entered into this interpretation for me, and I

         20  appreciate that.

         21                 Lastly, as it relates to the

         22  crosswalk painting. Because as Councilwoman Mealy

         23  raised that issue, that's a real serious problem.

         24  And I'll tell you why.  Because your construction

         25  that takes place once Con Edison whoever digs up, do
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          2  whatever they're going to do, there's never any

          3  coming back, painting, doing.  Who follows up to put

          4  the crosswalk back, to paint the area they come in,

          5  they do the digging, whoever digs, rips up

          6  everything, put their asphalt on top or whatever.

          7  But nobody else does any painting?  Who follows up

          8  with that?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  This is

         10  an extremely important issue.  It's a good one to

         11  raise.  We have an enormous amount of activity that

         12  happens under our streets and been proliferating in

         13  recent years.  And you're right.  Every time,

         14  whether it's a utility or a cable company and they

         15  come in, they dig under our streets and there are

         16  stipulations that they have to abide by.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  And they

         18  don't.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  And we

         20  have inspectors that will check up on this and

         21  they're supposed to restore the street to the way it

         22  was before.  And it's a challenge for us to make

         23  sure that the contractors are doing what they're

         24  supposed to.

         25                 Again, if there are specific
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          2  locations that --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So, what's

          4  the fine for them not adhering to the regulations in

          5  which they are supposed to bring it back up.

          6  Because there's a lot.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It's

          8  significant, and we have raised fines in recent

          9  years and we're going to great lengths to crack down

         10  on contractors.  I don't have the fine structure

         11  with me, but we're happy to get that for you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         15  Member Seabrook.  And questions from Council Member

         16  McMahon.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman and thank you for your continued great

         19  work in this area and the work of your staff, as

         20  well, and focusing on issues of transportation,

         21  Deputy Commissioner and Director.

         22                 I guess my first question is, are we

         23  going to get copies of those nice books you brought

         24  with you today?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:
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          2  Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  After the

          4  hearing?  That's no fun.  Maybe you want to ask the

          5  Sergeant to disburse them.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  They are

          8  available for every member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you.

         10  That's very nice.

         11                 I want to sort of dove tail on to

         12  some of the comments of my colleagues and convey to

         13  you, I guess a level of frustration that we feel, in

         14  terms of the urgency with which we are attacking

         15  this very, very serious problem of pedestrian

         16  safety. And not only the urgency, but the approach

         17  that we seem to be taking here in the City.  Let me

         18  talk about the, I mean just think about it.  In

         19  terms of Staten Island, I have in the borough, we

         20  have 80 schools, or so, in that range, plus or

         21  minus.  And when was the Safe Route to School

         22  Program first announced?  Was it two years ago or

         23  three years ago?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         25  it was three years ago.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Three years

          3  ago.  So, today I have to go back to Staten

          4  Islanders and tell them three years after a program

          5  is announced, a little less than ten percent, or

          6  eight schools in the borough, have been focused on

          7  and addressed. And the other 90 percent have not

          8  been focused on or addressed at all.  There are no

          9  results and there have been no improvements.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes, as

         11  I talked about in the testimony, as much as we've

         12  put an enormous amount of resources and time and

         13  dollars and energy into the Safe Routes Program,

         14  it's not as though we just focused on that and

         15  ignored the other schools.  We made significant

         16  improvements, including a number of schools in

         17  Staten Island outside of the eight Safe Route

         18  schools, that we focused on in your borough, and I

         19  think as Mr. Russo talked about earlier.   For

         20  instance, over the past year, we put in a number of

         21  speed reducers, I think about 60 at Safe Routes

         22  schools, but also dozens at other schools throughout

         23  the City.  So, we have been focused on them, and I

         24  don't believe I have it with me today, but I can get

         25  you a list of improvements at other schools in
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          2  Staten Island.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I would

          4  appreciate that, but clearly and the focus of Safe

          5  Routes, is to provide children safe access to and

          6  from school, particularly in and around the area of

          7  the school, correct?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You have to say yes

          9  or no.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Wouldn't

         13  crossing guards, wouldn't more crossing guards do

         14  that better than any physical changes you can make

         15  around the school?  Wouldn't the physical presence

         16  of human beings around the schools go much further

         17  than -- Because as you say, and I think to somewhat

         18  what you were saying before, you can put up all the

         19  signs and constructions and anything you want, but

         20  if people are negligent or reckless or criminal in

         21  the way they operate their vehicles, it's not going

         22  to make a difference, right?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         24  crossing guards are an important tool in the

         25  toolbox.  And unfortunately, it's one of the few
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          2  elements that DOT does not control, it's more of a

          3  question for the Police Department.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  See, but

          5  that's what I was speaking to about the approach

          6  that the City's taking to this.  To have DOT come in

          7  here and testify about pedestrian safety in New York

          8  City and not have the enforcement agency here with

          9  you, I think is meaningless.  You know, it's like a

         10  fire is raging and instead of putting out the fire,

         11  or calling the Fire Department, you call the

         12  Buildings Department and say okay, let's look at the

         13  structure of this building.  Well, you have to put

         14  out the fire first, you have to protect people.  And

         15  for me, the number one tool in the toolbox in these

         16  areas is human interaction, human involvement, and

         17  quite often that involves the Police Department. But

         18  they're not here, I understand that.  But is there,

         19  if I were in charge of DOT, and if I was the Mayor,

         20  and I said I want to have pedestrians safe, I would

         21  have a task force set up between DOT and the Police

         22  Department working together to make sure that this

         23  is done.  Yet, of all the tools in the toolbox you

         24  talked about up until now, even talking about

         25  signage and medians and what do you call them,
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          2  rubber neck, no, bottle necking, or

          3                 MR. RUSSO:  Neckdowns.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Neckdowns.

          5  A lot of necks in traffic, you ever notice that,

          6  right?  Think about it.  A lot of necking going on

          7  in DOT.  I don't know.  That got a gasp from the

          8  crowd, didn't it?  I'm the new Don Imus, no, never

          9  mind.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The fact

         11  that the Police Department isn't here testifying, I

         12  don't think that should be read into to mean that

         13  we're not working collaboratively with them.  And in

         14  fact, --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, let's

         16  talk about that then.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  In

         18  Staten Island, as you know, we've been a part of the

         19  Staten Island Traffic Task Force which is working on

         20  a number of initiatives including safety

         21  initiatives.  And the Police Department has been

         22  part of that.  In particular, around schools, our

         23  Borough Commissioner has been working with the

         24  Police Department in terms of an issue that comes up

         25  in other parts of the City, but has been
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          2  particularly pervasive in Staten Island, in terms of

          3  the dropping off of children and picking them up

          4  when parents double park, and working with the

          5  Police Department to cut down on that behavior.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But I think

          7  my colleagues would agree with me, that presence is

          8  not there.  I'm sure that they will say that there

          9  are many schools where the crossing guard is missing

         10  or the police agent is missing.  Is the City really

         11  serious about solving these problems if we're not

         12  talking about putting in the man and woman power,

         13  the staff power to do it?

         14                 MR. RUSSO:  You know, I think in an

         15  ideal world it would be great to have crossing

         16  guards at every location. Obviously the Police

         17  Department can't do that.  I think the question

         18  about how they allocate crossing guards is more of

         19  an appropriate question to ask them.  And I

         20  apologize they're not here today.  But I think that

         21  again, we work with them closely on many fronts and

         22  I think, did it take longer than we would have

         23  liked? Sure.  But we've made enormous progress in

         24  the area that you began your questioning on.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, in the
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          2  accidents, the pedestrian accidents that you analyze

          3  how they occur, is there a breakdown as to how many

          4  are attributed to driver negligence or driver

          5  recklessness?  Do you analyze them in that regard?

          6                 MR. RUSSO:  Yes, we definitely do.

          7  It's something that again as part of the

          8  comprehensive analysis that we're going to begin

          9  later this year, we want to begin to look into I

         10  think in a more in depth way than we have in the

         11  past.  But that's definitely part of what we look

         12  at.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But I'm sure

         14  and I hope you'll share that with the Council,

         15  because I'm sure that you're going to find that

         16  again, it's negligence and recklessness that causes

         17  accidents.  And quite often, the only tool in the

         18  toolbox to stop that to prevent it, is enforcement.

         19  And so again, I don't know what the right analogy is

         20  here, but we're not really dealing with the problem.

         21    We're putting up some striped lines and we're

         22  narrowing down, and Van Duzel Street, I know is

         23  highlighted in your testimony in my district.  But

         24  yes, we neckdown the road, but people still speed.

         25  And if people speed and there's no enforcement, then

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  we haven't solved the problem.  And there is still

          3  pedestrian knockdowns.

          4                 MR. RUSSO:  Enforcement is definitely

          5  part of the equation.  It's an important part of the

          6  equation.  In many cases, when you physically narrow

          7  a street, with or without enforcement, cars will

          8  slow down.  I mean, they're just physically, it will

          9  be much more difficult for somebody to continue at a

         10  very high speed when a roadway narrows.  That said,

         11  you're right, then enforcement is very important.  I

         12  think it's important to remember that enforcement is

         13  something that can happen on different fronts, and

         14  one of the things we want to try to do is relieve

         15  some of the burden from the Police Department,

         16  because we know they have lots of priorities.  They

         17  can't be everywhere.  And the more and more

         18  automated enforcement that we can do, the safer our

         19  streets will be.  And if we can get more red light

         20  cameras, if we can get a speed camera program

         21  approved by Albany, that's something that can go a

         22  long way, because again, the Police Department only

         23  has so many resources and they have a lot of

         24  priorities to balance.  The more and more automated

         25  enforcement we have, the safer we'll be.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How about

          3  traffic agents, people who stand in the

          4  intersections and control traffic?  How effective

          5  are they in terms of safety?  Do they add to the

          6  safety element?

          7                 MR. RUSSO:  I think they can help

          8  again.  You can't

          9  have personal assigned on every corridor at every

         10  intersection.            COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:

         11  No, but certainly, Manhattan certainly has a lot of

         12  them, wouldn't you say?  I mean are they assigned by

         13  you, or by the Police Department?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         15  Police Department.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I mean, I

         17  represent a borough of 500,000 people and we have

         18  two intersection traffic agents.  That's kind of

         19  hard to explain to the people that it seems to be

         20  such a low priority for the administration, and when

         21  you talk about pedestrian safety in New York City,

         22  it seems to be a glaring hole in any program that

         23  would want to address that.  Would you agree?

         24                 MR. RUSSO:  I know for instance in

         25  Staten Island on Highland Boulevard, that the Police
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          2  Department has increased overtime available to have

          3  more of a presence on Highland Boulevard.  But

          4  again, I think it's a set of questions more

          5  appropriate for the Police Department.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I won't

          7  accept that deferment to the Police Department,

          8  because you're the agency, we're having a hearing on

          9  pedestrian safety in New York City.  So, if it's the

         10  Police Department, then the Department of

         11  Transportation should be working with the Police

         12  Department to address these issues.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         14  Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So what

         16  efforts are being taken jointly, to address these

         17  issues?

         18                 MR. RUSSO:  Well, I've talked about a

         19  couple in your borough, including making

         20  improvements on Highland Boulevard where we made

         21  physical improvements.  And the Police Department

         22  has made overtime available to increase the

         23  personnel they have assigned to Highland Boulevard.

         24  We've been working collaboratively on schools. But

         25  again, I think questions, specific questions about
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          2  their availability of resources, is something that

          3  they'd have to answer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, again,

          5  Mr. Chairman, I knew that they were invited to this

          6  hearing.  Did he explain why they weren't here?  The

          7  administration made a choice not to have the Police

          8  Department here?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         10  Police Department wasn't invited to the hearing.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Mr.

         12  Chairman, was the Police Department invited to this

         13  hearing?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The Police

         15  Department was invited to this hearing, but the

         16  issue here is more along the lines of what the

         17  Department of Transportation's responsibilities are.

         18    But I certainly appreciate your comments that the

         19  enforcement agents are an important part of

         20  protecting the safety of pedestrians.

         21                 And nonetheless, even with the Police

         22  Department not being here, there is vital input that

         23  the Department of Transportation provides to the

         24  NYPD, to allow the NYPD to properly deploy these

         25  agents.  So, DOT is not totally off the hook with
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          2  regard to --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          4  Absolutely.  And visa versa.  There's an ongoing

          5  dialogue between the Police Department and the

          6  Department of Transportation.  They will often bring

          7  to our attention their concerns about particular

          8  locations.  They're looking at the accident data,

          9  just as we are.  When the Department has their

         10  TrafficStat meetings, representatives from DOT will

         11  be in attendance.  So, I think there's an ongoing

         12  collaboration.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well again,

         14  I just think that it's, my experience is in our

         15  borough, and I don't know how it is with my

         16  colleagues.  But wait until a tragedy occurs, then

         17  sometimes action is taken, sometimes it's not.  But

         18  it still doesn't solve the problem, in any regards.

         19  And I think that any approach that looks to

         20  pedestrian safety in this City, has to go beyond

         21  painted lines and signage.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         23  Member Mcmahon. A brief follow-up by Council Member

         24  Mealy.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  I eluded to

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  say I commend you on the Court Street corridor.

          3  That is excellent where you can sit down.  And I

          4  wish you would have gave (sic.) Us these great books

          5  earlier.  I see every project that is sent to DOT is

          6  right here. It's being implemented.  Now all we need

          7  is to be painted.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That's

          9  good to hear.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  So, thank you

         11  so much. You're doing a great job.  We can tell you

         12  what you're doing wrong or what needs to be

         13  implemented, but I can definitely say thank you,

         14  thank you.  It's right here in the book.  You're

         15  doing what you're supposed to.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         17                 A couple of very brief follow ups and

         18  then we have to move on with the hearing.  First of

         19  all, we do have a large number of people who are

         20  very concerned about what's happening with the

         21  Hell's Kitchen study.  And you noted that in your

         22  testimony, that in July, the DOT will begin a

         23  comprehensive study of the traffic situation in

         24  Hell's Kitchen.  Is there a time frame for how long

         25  that study will take to complete, and then take to
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          2  implement?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I can

          4  tell you right off the bat, implementation will

          5  obviously depend upon the recommendations that come

          6  up.  I think it's pretty safe to say that there will

          7  be a package of recommendations, some of them would

          8  be very short term and some of them would be longer

          9  term, particularly if there's capital work.  I'll

         10  get back to you on what our expected completion date

         11  is for the study.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Is that

         13  study going to take two months, six months, a year?

         14  Just some rough estimate.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  My guess

         16  is that it would be closer to a year rather than 2-

         17  3 months.  But let me get back to you as to how long

         18  that will take.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Thank you.

         20                 And then finally, what percentage of

         21  the personnel at DOT would you say are focused on

         22  improving or enhancing pedestrian safety?  Rough,

         23  like to the nearest ten percent.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  You

         25  know, it really depends on --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  To the nearest 25

          3  percent.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It

          5  depends on --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Just some rough

          7  number.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It

          9  depends on how you count, in the sense that there

         10  are some people including Ryan Russo's division,

         11  including our Safety Education Division, whose job

         12  is completely focused on safety related initiatives.

         13    With that said, there are lots of other people in

         14  our Department, particularly within our Traffic

         15  Operations Division.  Our Traffic Operations

         16  Division probably has about a quarter of the 4,000

         17  people in the agency.  And the people in the Signals

         18  Division, for instance, they are doing work that has

         19  lots of safety implications. Are they part of our

         20  Safety Division?  No.  But all the operational

         21  divisions, all the operational components within our

         22  Traffic Division, the Signs and Markings Division,

         23  the Signals Division, the Parking Division, all of

         24  those divisions represent a number of different,

         25  again, going back to the tools in the toolbox.  So,
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          2  to say that we have the people in our Street

          3  Management and Safety Division and people in our

          4  Safety Education Division, and it's all focused on

          5  safety, because it has the word safety in the title,

          6  I think misrepresents what's going on in the agency.

          7

          8                 Everybody who does work that happens

          9  on our street, whether, again, whether it's the

         10  parts of our Traffic Division, or it's the men and

         11  women that fill pot holes and re- pave our streets,

         12  all of that work has safety implications.  And I

         13  think what the question comes down to is, are all

         14  these different people and all these different tools

         15  being used in a way to improve safety?  And I think

         16  at the end of the day we made dramatic improvements

         17  over the past few years, but I think we'd all agree,

         18  it's something that we need to continue to make

         19  further improvements on.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Well, some

         21  people would be critical of that kind of approach

         22  and say that all of these functions are vital

         23  functions within the DOT, but many of the functions

         24  are slanted more towards making sure that traffic is

         25  flowing smoothly, as opposed to pedestrians being
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          2  fully protected. You know that criticism exists.

          3  And your testimony starts off by saying that efforts

          4  to better protect pedestrians are really DOT's most

          5  critical mission.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          7  Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But it's a very

          9  vague statement because there's no way of

         10  ascertaining how much of the effort DOT undertakes

         11  is truly geared toward safeguarding pedestrians, as

         12  opposed to smoothing and regulating the flow of

         13  traffic.

         14                 These are competing pressures on the

         15  street of New York.  And therefore, competing

         16  pressures on DOT's time and emphasis.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  They are

         18  often competing pressures, but a lot of the --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  They are almost

         20  always competing pressures.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  But a

         22  lot of the work that we do maintaining this enormous

         23  infrastructure, impacts safety for all the users.

         24  And your colleague earlier raised a question about

         25  pot holes and sink holes, which can have an impact
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          2  on vehicular traffic, and they can also have an

          3  impact on cyclists and also an impact on

          4  pedestrians.  So, there's a lot of work that happens

          5  at the agency which has an enormous impact on all

          6  the users.  There, again, there's other work that

          7  goes on in the agency that more and more is being

          8  focused on efforts to better protect pedestrians.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Well, thank

         10  you very much for joining us this morning, and we

         11  look forward to getting some of the specific follow

         12  ups, as you had mentioned during the testimony.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 MR. RUSSO:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me call up

         17  immediately our next panel of witnesses consisting

         18  of families of accident victims. We have James St.

         19  John, Audrey Anderson and Rachel Myers.  I want to

         20  thank everyone for bearing with us today.  The

         21  hearing is rather lengthy and we have a number of

         22  people to hear from.

         23                 Following this panel, we'll hear from

         24  a panel of transportation advocates including Paul

         25  White from Transportation Alternatives, as well as
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          2  Carla Quintero from the same organization, Teresa

          3  Toro from Tri State Transportation Campaign and

          4  Lauren George from Citizens Committee for NYC.

          5                 Thank you very much.  Mr. St. John,

          6  please proceed. Just pull the mic up closely and

          7  press the button so that the light is off.

          8                 MR. ST. JOHN:  Good morning

          9  councilmen and councilwomen.  I'm here on behalf of

         10  my grandson, James Napririce (phonetic).  I would

         11  like to say that listening to the two gentlemen that

         12  were sitting here before us speak about everything

         13  they had done in regards to Court Street in

         14  Brooklyn, I can honestly say by living there, that

         15  that's not actually true, exactly what they are

         16  saying.  Because if you come in Brooklyn, on Court

         17  Street the lights, they're not working the way

         18  they're supposed to.  Okay?  My grandson was killed

         19  on Third Avenue and Baltic Street.  There has been

         20  fatalities of two children months prior to my

         21  grandson's death which was on February 3rd, 2006.

         22                 These two boys that were killed was

         23  Juan Estrada and Victor Flores.  They were ran

         24  (sic.) Over by a dump truck.  Okay? My grandson was

         25  coming from school with my daughter.  They were in
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          2  the crosswalk.  They had the right of way.  For DOT

          3  to sit up here and say that they're making necessary

          4  improvements, in my opinion, is not correct.  It is

          5  not correct at all.  Because if they would have did

          6  (sic.) The things that have been brought to my

          7  attention since my grandson was killed, they were

          8  allowed, or I should say, they had money allotted

          9  for improvements to be done for Third Avenue.  And

         10  nothing has been done.  They're still digging up the

         11  street that I live on now, to this day.  They're

         12  still digging up the streets.  If you come down and

         13  you see that they're digging up any street in New

         14  York City before any work can be done, they have to

         15  get a permit from DOT and the City Hall.  Before

         16  they can do any kind of construction, any kind of

         17  road repair, before the cable companies can come and

         18  dig up your street, they have to get these permits.

         19  So DOT is aware of what's happening.  And for them

         20  to say that they are reducing fatalities and

         21  injuries?  No.  They are not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr. St.

         23  John.  Sorry for your loss.  We have Miss Anderson

         24  and then Miss Myers.

         25                 MS. ANDERSON:  Good morning everyone.
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          2    I'm here representing Andre Anderson, the love of

          3  my life.  Gone forever. Andre F. Anderson was no

          4  ordinary child.  He was my first child, my only son,

          5  my perfect prince, my dredle who enjoyed cycling and

          6  spinning me around like a top.  Now he will never be

          7  able to do this again and I will never be able to

          8  enjoy any of that.  Because on September 24th, 2005,

          9  between the hours of 6:30 to 7:00 p.m., he was

         10  fatally struck from behind while riding his bicycle

         11  on Shorefront Parkway home from a skate park.

         12                 Yes, struck from behind.  If you rear

         13  end another vehicle in New York City, you're

         14  accountable.  But if you hit a person from behind,

         15  even though you know you state in your statement,

         16  you saw that person with enough time to make, not

         17  one, but two evasive maneuvers, you're still to walk

         18  away free and have it classified as an accident.

         19  That is wrong.  We talk about pedestrian safety, but

         20  it also involves the NYPD.  Enforcement is a must,

         21  it's a key.  This attitude by the NYPD that whenever

         22  a person is killed on the street, is of no such

         23  importance to them, must be stopped.  There are

         24  regulations and guidelines that they are trained to

         25  follow, but they don't.
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          2                 You will, no doubt at one point down

          3  the road, somewhere be told by NYPD representatives

          4  that they follow all their guidelines and

          5  procedures.  But don't be fooled.  Over the years,

          6  all the hundreds that have died on the street, I beg

          7  of you I besiege of you, collect those AIS reports.

          8  That is the Accident Investigative's Squad report.

          9  Evaluate it.  Analyze it.  And then you will realize

         10  they're not doing their job, and we're being

         11  destroyed.

         12                 The driver, having admitted that he

         13  was speeding, was never issued a summons.  It was

         14  this vehicle that killed my child, was even allowed

         15  to be towed to his house, his place of residence.

         16  That is not protocol.  That should not be happened

         17  (sic.)

         18                 To make matters worse, the

         19  investigative officer, Mr. Meringola, informed me at

         20  Highway Patrol Headquarters, I went there, that he

         21  personally administered a breathalyzer to this man

         22  and he had the proof in his report.  You have the

         23  reports in front of you right there.  There is no

         24  such thing as a breathalyzer being administered.

         25  It's a lie.
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          2                 When we lose the ones we love in the

          3  street, we are being bombarded with lies.  Yes, we

          4  do this.  Yes, we do that.  But only if you have the

          5  guts to follow it through, will you ever discover

          6  what is being done, and what is not being done.  I

          7  besiege of you guys, ladies and gentlemen, please

          8  enact some form of resolutions to make it mandatory,

          9  not just for the DOT to do their part in pedestrian

         10  safety, but enforcing and making sure that police

         11  officers do administer a breathalyzer to these

         12  people that kill on the street.

         13                 In addition, all witnesses must be

         14  questioned and their statements taken.  The vehicles

         15  that kill, those are weapons. So, why would it be

         16  allowed to be towed back home?  It should be taken

         17  to garages for inspections.

         18                 MR. ST. JOHN:  Not only that, is that

         19  when someone is killed in the accident like members

         20  of our family, because if they do administer a

         21  breathalyzer test, because the individual does not

         22  seem to be intoxicated at the time, they let him go.

         23    The man that killed my grandson, they let this

         24  individual go.  All they did was issue him a summons

         25  for failure to yield to pedestrians.
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          2                 When you take the driver's test, I

          3  don't care where you're at in New York State, when

          4  you first go down and sign up for that test, there's

          5  a question on the test that asks you if you approach

          6  an intersection and there is a pedestrian, who has

          7  the right of way?  They tell you pedestrians always

          8  have the right of way.  We teach our kids to stay in

          9  the crosswalk.

         10                 MS. ANDERSON:  In addition, there

         11  must be a guideline with a list of punishments for

         12  those officers who choose to be selective of whom to

         13  thoroughly investigate.

         14                 Too many lives are lost on the street

         15  every year because of careless and reckless drivers.

         16    We owe it to ourselves. We owe it to everyone we

         17  know and love to enact these changes.

         18                 You had asked earlier, do we need

         19  tougher laws for careless and reckless drivers?  I

         20  would say, most definitely.  We do.  They need to be

         21  treated like criminals and prosecuted accordingly.

         22                 To make matters worse for me, I

         23  received what is supposed to be a study of

         24  Shorefront Parkway.  I heard a gentlemen mention

         25  Shorefront Parkway here earlier.  And on that study,
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          2  it was conducted in 2005, and on that study, there's

          3  a memo to the 100th Precinct Captain from DOT

          4  stating that drivers are speeding on Shorefront

          5  Parkway, and they need to monitor it.  It was not

          6  done. I lost my child.  And I'm sure somebody else

          7  is going to die.

          8                 We need to have DOT create safer

          9  streets, not for people who just walk, but for

         10  cyclists, too.  Creating a buffer zone for a cycling

         11  lane, that doesn't go nowhere, makes no sense to me.

         12  Shorefront Parkway has a cycling lane but it takes

         13  you absolutely nowhere, from one corner to the next.

         14  And that's it.

         15                 I'm begging of you guys, ladies and

         16  gentlemen, do not let this tragedy happen again in

         17  New York City without your input of a change.  You

         18  have the power to do that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Ms.

         20  Anderson.

         21                 MR. ST. JOHN:  There has to be a law

         22  made and kept on the books and enforced, that if

         23  someone takes a pedestrian's life, like she said,

         24  with a vehicle, they have to be arrested and held

         25  accountable for -- DOT needs to be accountable for,
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          2  because there's a lot of things and everyone in this

          3  room know (sic.), you can walk out of this room

          4  right now and try and cross that street. And if

          5  you're not paying attention, and I mean paying

          6  attention whereas you're constantly turning your

          7  head looking around to see where you're going, you

          8  would get hit.  Because coming off this bridge, or

          9  making that turn on Broadway, it is madness.  You're

         10  taking your own life in your hands, walking out of

         11  here on your lunch break going to get a hot dog, a

         12  soda, anything, just walking across this street.

         13  When there used to be the credit union here, you

         14  could come out this building and walk across the

         15  street and if you're not paying attention, you are a

         16  dead soul.  Because you've got traffic coming up

         17  this way getting on the bridge, coming around Police

         18  Plaza and they don't care.  You don't see not one

         19  traffic agent out here at all during any time of the

         20  day.  And during certain times of the day,

         21  especially around 12;30, 2:00, 3:00 when you know

         22  children are getting out of school, there should be

         23  somebody at every, not one school, every school in

         24  New York City. There should be some traffic agent

         25  there to make sure that those kids get across the
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          2  street and get home safe.

          3                 My grandson didn't have a chance.  He

          4  just started school.  And he was coming home.  He

          5  didn't have a chance.  When you have individuals out

          6  here driving and driving vehicles like the Hummer

          7  that killed my grandson, that vehicle was not

          8  supposed to be on these streets.  That was a

          9  military vehicle.  It was made specifically for the

         10  military.  It had no business being put out here on

         11  the street.  When you got (sic.) Vehicles and people

         12  out here that don't care and are only looking at the

         13  money picture, you got serious problems.  And the

         14  bottom line is, if you don't stop it now, it's going

         15  to continue.  If you've got records and statistics

         16  going back through the years, about fatalities in

         17  hit and run, how many more people have to lose their

         18  life before something is done? You have senior

         19  citizens sitting here in this room that can barely

         20  go to the store because they are scared to step off

         21  that curb into the street, because they don't know

         22  if they're going to make it back.  They don't know

         23  if they're going to make it back onto the curb, let

         24  alone across the street to the other side.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr. St.
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          2  John.

          3                 MR. ST. JOHN:  You have tourists

          4  here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me turn the

          6  floor over to Ms. Rachael Myers.

          7                 MS. MYERS:  Hi.  I'm a newly

          8  appointed member of Community Board 5 and I work

          9  with Time's Up and Visual Resistance and

         10  Transportation Alternatives on projects that

         11  memorialize pedestrians and cyclists who are killed

         12  by cars in New York City.               I first want

         13  to say that I just really appreciate that this

         14  hearing is even being held, because it sometimes

         15  feels like no one's really paying attention to this

         16  issue.  And I really appreciate what you said about

         17  how this is not just about statistics, this is about

         18  people, and that's something that I've been saying

         19  for a long time now.

         20                 When we install these ghost bikes,

         21  these memorials to cyclists, we try to meet with the

         22  families who are affected by this.  And I can tell

         23  you it's heartbreaking that this happens, and the

         24  City has a lot of support set up for victims of

         25  crime.  But because these crashes are not considered
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          2  a crime, these families do not qualify for a lot of

          3  these programs, and I feel like there's a lot of

          4  people we're losing through the cracks because

          5  killing a person with a car, is really not

          6  considered a crime in New York.

          7                 This is something that is really

          8  personal to me because I also witnessed the hit and

          9  run crash that killed my boyfriend, Peter Hornbeck

         10  on January 10, 2004.  He was killed at the

         11  intersection of 96th Street and Park Avenue, only a

         12  block from where we lived.  The car that hit him was

         13  estimated to be speeding between 80 and 100 miles

         14  per hour, headed northbound on Park Avenue.  The

         15  driver's license was suspended at the time, due to

         16  previous speeding infractions, and the car he was

         17  driving was uninsured and reported stolen.  He was

         18  driving at such a high speed that Pete's body was

         19  thrown into the intersection at 97th Street.

         20                 He was only 26 years old.  He had

         21  just been admitted to Hunter Graduate School to

         22  begin his Master's Degree in Education.  He really

         23  wanted to be an earth science teacher.  He really

         24  cared about the environment, and he wanted to teach

         25  other people about the environment.  He spent a lot
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          2  of his free time at the dog shelter near our house,

          3  volunteering with stray dogs.  He considered himself

          4  an adventurer, and he was always coming up with

          5  gadgets and trying to patent them to try to change

          6  the world.

          7                 And I think that's what this hearing

          8  is about.  This is about the people that we're

          9  losing in the streets and this is what we're losing.

         10    People that are wanting to make contributions to

         11  the world that are changing the City, and this is

         12  what we're losing.  And we're losing them in large

         13  numbers because on average, we lose someone every

         14  other day in this City, and I can tell you from my

         15  experience that these fatalities forever change

         16  people. And I will always be haunted by what I

         17  witnessed three years ago, and for not having Pete

         18  in my life.

         19                 And I think a lot needs to change in

         20  order to prevent these tragedies from happening over

         21  and over again. Because right now, it's a cycle that

         22  repeats itself, because these drivers are rarely

         23  held accountable.  Like Audrey said, they can get

         24  into their cars the next day and the media moves on

         25  to the next story on families who were left behind
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          2  to pick up the pieces.  And what we really need, in

          3  order to break this cycle, is some leadership.  We

          4  need elected officials that will take on pedestrian

          5  safety and make it a priority.

          6                 Transportation Alternatives has

          7  created a Pedestrian Safety Action Plan.  And this

          8  plan is comprehensive and makes significant strides

          9  to stopping this cycle.  But without leadership on

         10  this issue, that is all we have is just a plan.

         11  Without leadership, we're stuck in this cycle and

         12  will continue to lose what it is that makes this

         13  City great, it's people.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         15  much.  We have questions for you from Council Member

         16  Seabrook.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         18  very much, Mr. Chairman and I certainly want to

         19  thank the panel who's here, and I certainly must

         20  commend your courage and determination.  And it

         21  certainly should inspire us to do what we will have

         22  to do.  It's unfortunate that DOT and the

         23  Commissioners who left, this is the most important

         24  testimony that they needed to hear as it relates to

         25  putting the human face to those statistics.  And I
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          2  think that when we do that and see that, the

          3  importance of it and I feel your pain. I, too was a

          4  victim of a drunken driver in an accident that my

          5  sister lost half of her memory and I thought that

          6  she was dead and I didn't know of my injury.  And

          7  the driver never spent a day in jail, as well.  And

          8  so I understand what you're saying.  It's tragic,

          9  Mr. Chairman that the Police Department and DOT does

         10  not look at these deaths in the same vein that they

         11  look at a death if someone took a gun and shot

         12  someone.  And that's sensationalized in our

         13  communities and in our papers.  But it is never

         14  dealt with that these are human lives and these are

         15  children and people that committed no crime, but are

         16  victims of crimes, that we have not identified them

         17  as crimes.  And so, I would hope that there's

         18  another hearing that we would have the Police

         19  Department, as well. Because their level of

         20  sensitivity in dealing with this is crucial as to

         21  how these things are done, and certainly if we could

         22  look to bring some legislative action here and with

         23  the State, that we could do some of these things.

         24  Because I certainly think that there has to be

         25  something that has to be dealt with on these issues
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          2  that we look at.  And I commend all of you and

          3  express my condolences.  Because nothing could ever,

          4  that I would say that could take the place of your

          5  son, your grandson and your fiancee. And I certainly

          6  understand being a victim of a situation myself. And

          7  hopefully we will begin to do that, but I would hope

          8  that the DOT has an opportunity, as you said, Mr.

          9  Chairman, to put a human face on those statistics

         10  that they're dealing with each and every day.  And

         11  perhaps it would motivate them to give a human

         12  response to a serious problem that we've lived with

         13  and done too little about.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         15  Member Seabrook.

         16                 Just to be fair to the Department of

         17  Transportation, they do have officials still here

         18  and listening to the testimony.

         19                 I want to thank you very much for

         20  sharing with us your experience and really, this is

         21  not about statistics, this is about people.  And we

         22  share your grief and your loss.  Thank you.

         23                 MS. ANDERSON:  And that is the

         24  problem.  The media needs to pay more attention to

         25  these faces.  They're not just a number.  Our lives

                                                            117

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  are destroyed forever.  We can never put the pieces

          3  back together.  No matter how hard we try.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          5                 I would like to invite our next

          6  panel, Paul White, Karla Quintero, Teresa Toro,

          7  Lauren George.  We have a large number of people

          8  wishing to provide testimony, and so after this

          9  panel, I would need to ask everybody to be as

         10  concise as possible.  So, following this panel,

         11  we'll hear from Robert Benfatto, Christine Berthet,

         12  J. Lee Compton and David Diamond.

         13                 Go ahead, Paul.

         14                 MR. WHITE:  Thank you, Chairman John

         15  Liu.

         16                 We've heard a lot of evidence this

         17  morning showing so much of what isn't being done to

         18  protect pedestrians on our streets.  And I think of

         19  all the evidence we've heard, whether it's the

         20  inconsistent application of safety measures, whether

         21  it's not giving enough people enough time to cross

         22  the street.  To me the most glaring example of what

         23  the DOT is not doing, what the City is not doing,

         24  what Mayor Bloomberg is not doing, is that they do

         25  not have a target or a goal to reduce pedestrian
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          2  fatalities and injuries.  The DOT can tell you to

          3  the number, how many stop lights it wants to install

          4  next year, how many pot holes it wants to fill, how

          5  many street lights it wants to repair.  But there is

          6  not a single target for reducing fatalities and

          7  injuries, and so if the topic is holding the DOT

          8  accountable, job one is for the City to set targets.

          9    For example, reducing pedestrian fatalities and

         10  injuries by 20 percent.  It's a very simple target.

         11  But that's the kind of goal that can inform policy

         12  decisions and can help the City navigate this trade

         13  off between traffic flow and pedestrian safety.    London

         14  is an example of a city that has very strong targets

         15  for reducing fatalities and injuries and they're

         16  doing a much better job than New York addressing

         17  this problem.

         18                 We heard today some testimony from

         19  the DOT about Queens Boulevard and how that is one

         20  of their, maybe their best success story for

         21  reducing fatalities and injuries.  It's telling to

         22  look at the numbers.  In 1997, 18 New Yorkers were

         23  struck and killed on Queens Boulevard, 18.  That

         24  number today is about two or three per year, a

         25  drastic improvement.

                                                            119

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 The DOT also told us today about how

          3  fatalities have declined in general, over the years,

          4  and this is terrific.  But the real story is that

          5  they've managed to do this by focusing on a very

          6  small number of streets and intersections.  The real

          7  story is what this tells us.  They've only scratched

          8  the surface.  If they systematically applied these

          9  types of safety improvements to even just the top

         10  ten percent of the most dangerous streets and

         11  intersections, we could cut fatalities and injuries

         12  in half.

         13                 And this stuff is not expensive.

         14  Signal timing is cheap.  The City assumes that

         15  everyone walks at four feet per second.  Senior

         16  citizens walk 2.5 feet per second, so that's why

         17  they don't have enough time to cross the street.

         18  Tomorrow the City could change that City- wide, for

         19  virtually no cost.  Yes, a few motorists will be

         20  inconvenienced, but I think that's well worth it.

         21  With that, I'd like to turn it over to Karla

         22  Quintero, Transportation Alternative's Deputy

         23  Director for Planning.

         24                 DEPUTY DIRECTOR QUINTERO:  Hi, good

         25  afternoon by now.
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          2                 I think as other people have

          3  expressed pedestrian safety is a critical problem in

          4  our City.  Each year, more than 10,000 pedestrians

          5  are injured on our streets, and about 150 lose their

          6  lives.  So, just to put this in perspective, this is

          7  about one every two or three days.  And then about

          8  27 pedestrians being struck and injured every day.

          9                 And as was stated before, as well,

         10  that killing a pedestrian with a car is not

         11  considered a crime.  However, if it were, it would

         12  displace attacks with sharper blunt objects as the

         13  second most common kind of homicide in New York

         14  City.

         15                 In response to this crisis on our

         16  streets, I'm here to present a Pedestrian Safety

         17  Action Plan.  We would like the City to adopt this

         18  comprehensive plan, and to set targets to reduce

         19  pedestrian fatalities and injuries on our City

         20  streets by 20 percent.  So, this would mean that by

         21  2009, there would be 2,000 fewer pedestrian injuries

         22  and fatalities as compared to 2005.

         23                 The solutions that are presented in

         24  the Pedestrian Safety Action Plan are all items that

         25  the City has control over, and that they can change
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          2  starting today.

          3                 In New York City, there are two types

          4  of streets. There are streets that are complete and

          5  there are streets that are incomplete.  Through the

          6  compilation and analysis of over ten years of City-

          7  wide pedestrian crash data, we now know that crashes

          8  are not random occurrences.  We know that crashes

          9  happen more and more often on streets that lack

         10  important safety improvements, such as extended

         11  pedestrian crossing time, narrower travel lanes and

         12  the addition of protected pedestrian refuge space.

         13  Streets that lack these basic amenities for

         14  pedestrians, are incomplete.

         15                 Unfortunately, complete streets, ones

         16  that give pedestrians the safety they need and

         17  deserve, are still the exception in this City, and

         18  not the rule.  While Queens Boulevard, which was

         19  nicknamed the Boulevard of Death, did receive a

         20  significant amount of pedestrian safety

         21  improvements, the City has not yet made complete and

         22  safe streets part of its standard operating

         23  procedure.  It defies logic, that even on streets

         24  that are undergoing routine reconstruction, or

         25  repaving, the DOT is still failing to automatically
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          2  include safety improvements as part of this work,

          3  even though these safety improvements have been

          4  proven to save lives on Queens Boulevard.

          5                 In addition to causing death and

          6  injury, the incomplete streets isolate residents and

          7  discourage them from walking.  With increases in

          8  vehicular traffic and poor driver behavior, many New

          9  York City streets no longer function as safe passage

         10  ways through communities, but rather obstacles for

         11  residents trying to reach important destinations,

         12  such as local parks, grocery stores, transit stops

         13  and senior centers. Harlem's seven year effort to

         14  gain changes on 135th Street and Madison, serves as

         15  an example of this.

         16                 For the past seven years, elected

         17  officials and residents have requested changes to an

         18  intersection that is so dangerous, many residents

         19  that live in the adjacent housing complexes will not

         20  cross the street to visit their relatives living on

         21  the other side.  In these seven years, the DOT has

         22  only made small changes to traffic signals that have

         23  failed to make the intersection safer for Harlem

         24  residents. The intersection which now leads to a

         25  beautiful waterfront park, which I also want to
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          2  point out, the entrance to the intersection is an

          3  entrance to a pedestrian bridge which leads to the

          4  park, is still too dangerous for pedestrians.  And

          5  the DOT still refuses to consider recommendations

          6  put forth by the community and by traffic safety

          7  experts to make the area safer.

          8                 Sometimes all it takes to fix these

          9  dangerous locations is the political will to do so.

         10  As was mentioned before, on March 31, 2006, Dr.

         11  Esther Levine was struck and killed on 20th Street

         12  and 1st Avenue.  And this mobilized the community

         13  that lived around the intersection, to work together

         14  with Council Member Garodnick, to gain improvements

         15  at this intersection.  These improvements were

         16  implemented in a relatively short period of time,

         17  about five months, and they included increased

         18  crossing time for pedestrians, in particular,

         19  exclusive crossing time, realignment of crosswalks

         20  to make pedestrians more visible to turning traffic

         21  and a service road was closed to create more

         22  pedestrian space and a little pedestrian park.

         23  These changes have made this intersection more

         24  complete.  It's made the intersection safe and

         25  accessible to all the residents, which is extremely
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          2  important in this area because there's a high

          3  concentration of senior citizen residents.

          4                 If DOT can make such important

          5  pedestrian improvements at 20th Street and 1st

          6  Avenue where there are high volumes of vehicular

          7  traffic and high pedestrian volumes, then they have

          8  the ability to make similar improvements at other

          9  locations that are equally as dangerous, such as the

         10  top ten percent of intersections which we mentioned,

         11  which account for about 50 percent of pedestrian

         12  injuries and fatalities.   If they knew how to make

         13  these intersections safer, it's their duty to make

         14  an effort to duplicate the success at these

         15  intersections, and also at intersections where there

         16  are high concentrations of vulnerable pedestrians,

         17  such as children, senior citizens, the visually

         18  impaired and the disabled.

         19                 You already heard from the family

         20  members of loved ones that have lost grandchildren,

         21  sons and fiances, but I just want to take a second

         22  to talk a little bit about senior citizens, because

         23  they are often overlooked in transportation

         24  discussions here in the City.  There are close to

         25  one million senior citizens that are living in New
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          2  York City right now.  They count for 13 percent of

          3  the population, yet they represent 33 percent of all

          4  pedestrian injuries and fatalities.  We fail, as a

          5  City, to provide them with a basic standard of

          6  protection when walking.  For the past four years,

          7  Transportation Alternatives has been working to

          8  document their concerns and to come up with

          9  solutions to make the streets safer for them.  I

         10  know first hand, because I go out with a lot of

         11  senior citizens in communities throughout the City,

         12  and it's pretty remarkable to see Grandmothers, and

         13  I go out with them, they have stop watches and maps

         14  and disposable cameras and they're just so eager to

         15  advocate for safer streets.  They really want DOT to

         16  know how poorly our streets are functioning for them

         17  right now. How dangerous it is for them to get to

         18  the grocery store, to get to the doctor, wherever

         19  they need to go.  And hundreds of seniors have

         20  participated in these efforts, and despite broad

         21  support from the community and from elected

         22  officials to bring safer streets to this

         23  constituency,, the DOT has not responded to their

         24  requests.  Making streets safer for vulnerable

         25  pedestrians, such as senior citizens, should be a
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          2  priority in this City, because if streets are safer

          3  for them, then they're going to be safer for

          4  everybody.

          5                 Just to conclude, I'd like to say

          6  that contrary to popular belief, pedestrian safety

          7  is not just a transportation issue, it's as much a

          8  public safety issue and a public health issue, as

          9  well.  Our City has taken bold steps to reduce crime

         10  and to measure crime and to target resources

         11  efficiently, and so we should be treating pedestrian

         12  injuries and fatalities as crimes, as well, and

         13  setting targets for reducing those numbers.

         14                 And finally, we know more about the

         15  public health of New Yorkers than we ever have.  The

         16  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene estimates

         17  that one million New Yorkers are overweight and that

         18  675,000 New Yorkers have diabetes.  And in response

         19  to these epidemics, the City is taking bold steps to

         20  improve New Yorkers access to healthy foods.  But

         21  the second piece of the puzzle is redesigning New

         22  York City streets so they enable New Yorkers to be

         23  more physically active.  We can't ask New Yorkers to

         24  walk more and lead healthier lifestyles, if we do

         25  not provide them with the adequate infrastructure to
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          2  do so.

          3                 So furthermore, all the changes that

          4  have been mentioned right now, would really serve to

          5  save lives and then restore New York's preeminence

          6  as one of the world's great walking cities.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Teresa?

          9                 MS. TORO:  Thank you Chairman Liu.

         10  I'm Teresa Toro of the Tri Sate Transportation

         11  Campaign.  This is a timely hearing regarding

         12  pedestrian safety.  The Bloomberg administration has

         13  staked out a prominent policy position on the need

         14  to move many more people in and through the New York

         15  City of the future, though it's provided little

         16  detail on the practical implications of this

         17  position.  One implication is the essential

         18  relationship between expanded mass transit and

         19  higher pedestrian volumes.  Mayor Bloomberg says we

         20  will do more with mass transit.  What are these

         21  people going to do when they get off the bus or

         22  train?  We will have more pedestrians who will need

         23  more room to walk and a safer environment to do it,

         24  unless we want the pedestrian fatality trend

         25  reversal to continue to swing in the wrong
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          2  direction.  It's no accident that many of the

          3  toughest places to walk in New York today are the

          4  big transit hubs, Penn Station, where train

          5  commuters walk in the avenues along side cars

          6  morning and night, Port Authority bus terminal,

          7  Herald and Times Squares and Flushing Main Street.

          8  We are talking about adding a transit ridership and

          9  packing more people on foot, on and through these

         10  hubs.  Does the City government even care that

         11  people are forced to walk in the avenues every

         12  morning and evening?  Is it okay?  Because to do

         13  anything about it, means relaxing City government's

         14  obsessive preoccupation with how the cars are

         15  flowing across every inch of pavement in every

         16  corner of town.

         17                 We must do more with guidelines that

         18  put pedestrians first.  Stop bending over backward

         19  for the small minority of commuters and shoppers who

         20  have to haul their SUVs around everywhere they go,

         21  and really start building good paces to walk and

         22  allow pedestrians to enjoy the City's urban

         23  landscape.  Despite the global sweep of these

         24  concepts of traffic calming and place making over

         25  the past three decades, it's something that New York
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          2  City is not philosophically equipped to do.

          3                 In fact, we seem light years from a

          4  City with a pedestrian first approach.  We're not

          5  even comfortable with enforcing the traffic laws

          6  that used to pass for common sense, like not driving

          7  through red lights.  Former New York City

          8  Comptroller, Alan Hevesi, estimated that one million

          9  red light violations take place each day in the

         10  City.  Doing something about that would not only

         11  reduce pedestrian and motorist death and injuries,

         12  but it would be revenue positive for the City.  Why

         13  isn't that a priority?

         14                 Over a decade after the advent of the

         15  Giuliani administration,  we are still waiting for

         16  the extension of the broken window theory of law

         17  enforcement to the wild west climate on City

         18  streets.  The theory says, that if you enforce the

         19  smaller violations like fare beating or walking

         20  between subway cars, both campaigns have helped

         21  reduce crime on the subways, you will catch the

         22  bigger criminals.  It makes similar sense that the

         23  red light runners have outstanding tickets,

         24  uninspected vehicles or expired licenses and are

         25  likely the people who will one day hurt or kill
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          2  someone with their car.  Commissioner Kelly, Mayor

          3  Bloomberg, where are you on basic law enforcement?

          4                 Since they are now nowhere on this

          5  issue after six years in office, it's time for the

          6  Council to take action.  We deeply appreciate and

          7  value oversight hearings like this one as much as

          8  the next advocacy group.  But let's have the

          9  legislature do some tough legislating.

         10                 Instead of introducing and not

         11  passing a resolution calling on the DOT to implement

         12  a City- wide Safe Routes to School Program, mandate

         13  it with a law.  Instead of calling on DOT to

         14  implement a City- wide Safe Routes for Senior

         15  program, require it. The Council should pass

         16  legislation which will increase the number of

         17  traffic enforcement agents.  Again, that'll pay for

         18  itself.  And approve a bill which requires NYPD to

         19  report on the violations written by those agents.

         20  Become part of the solution, rather than just

         21  another member of the chorus that has so far fallen

         22  on deaf ears.  If the Bloomberg administration will

         23  not step up and defend the citizens of New York,

         24  please, New York City Council members, have a

         25  mandate should feel like they have a mandate to do
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          2  so. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Teresa.

          4                 Ms. George?

          5                 MS. GEORGE:  Yes.  Hello,  Chairman

          6  Liu, members of the Committee, I'm speaking for

          7  President Peter Kostmayer of Citizens for NYC,

          8  Citizens Committee for New York City.  We're here

          9  today because of the tragic events recently that

         10  have been increasing pedestrian deaths all over the

         11  City.  And Citizens Committee for New York City

         12  supports hundreds of block and neighborhood

         13  associations throughout the City, whose primary

         14  concern is quality of life.  And how can you have a

         15  positive quality of life without basic street level

         16  safety?

         17                 As my colleagues here have mentioned,

         18  pedestrian safety is not just a transportation

         19  issue, but a community life issue.  And that's our

         20  primary concern as an organization.

         21                 Over the past several months, I've

         22  spoken to dozens of civic and neighborhood

         23  associations about traffic relief.  And everyone's

         24  primary concern is pedestrian safety.  So, it

         25  underscores the fact that we need a City- wide
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          2  action plan, like Transportation Alternatives here

          3  has recommended.

          4                 So, we'd like to say that we

          5  appreciate what these fellow advocates have

          6  recommended, and also the design measures that can

          7  prevent these types of accidents from happening,

          8  need to be implemented and targeted and measured

          9  more on a regular basis by the DOT, not just

         10  enforcement, but design and enforcement go hand in

         11  hand.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         13  for your testimony today and this is exactly what

         14  we're trying to do, conduct this legislative

         15  oversight and we already have a number of ideas for

         16  bills that are passable.  Thank you.

         17                 I want to thank everybody who has

         18  been part of this hearing this morning and so far

         19  into this afternoon.  We do have a limit on the time

         20  that we have available.  We have a substantial

         21  hearing that is scheduled to start at 1:00 on the

         22  way the school buses have been operated in New York

         23  City.  So let's proceed immediately to the next

         24  panel.   Robert Benfatto, Christine Borthet, J. Lee

         25  Compton and David Diamond.  To be followed by
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          2  Shirley Secunda, Kathleen Treat, Martin Treat and

          3  Herbert Rose.

          4                 I'll need to ask person testifying

          5  from this point on to keep it as brief as possible,

          6  and unfortunately we do have to start the clock

          7  because of the additional hearing that's coming in.Mr

          8  . Benfatto, please proceed.

          9                 MR. COMPTON:  Chairman Liu, my name

         10  is Lee Compton. I am the chair of Community Board 4

         11  in Manhattan.  Our district is located on the west

         12  side of Manhattan, between 14th and 60th Streets.

         13                 Our district has the formerly quiet

         14  residential street to the historic Chelsea, heavy

         15  truck traffic and our manufacturing zones, speeding

         16  cars on the West Side Highway, the seemingly endless

         17  stream of buses, the Port Authority Bus terminal and

         18  the Lincoln Tunnel.  All of whose entrances and

         19  exits are located in our district.  Most

         20  importantly, we have pedestrians being killed and

         21  maimed.  In March alone, we had two pedestrians

         22  killed and one critically injured.

         23                 We are here to ask for your help with

         24  this ongoing tragedy, but we are also here to stress

         25  that any attempts to define the problems or develop
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          2  solutions will be fatally flawed unless they

          3  incorporate the experience of the community.  We are

          4  the ones with our feet quite literally on the

          5  ground.

          6                 Speaking very generally, we have

          7  three types of situations that lead to problems for

          8  pedestrians.  First, we have simple congestion

          9  caused by high vehicle density.  At the very least,

         10  these require the presence of traffic officers and

         11  the reconsideration of fundamental traffic flows.

         12                 Second, we have simple speed.

         13  Related to an earlier question from Council Member

         14  Seabrook, we have signage referring to 10th Avenue

         15  as an expressway.  Totally inappropriate.  These

         16  situations need appropriate signage enforcement and

         17  perhaps engineering solutions.

         18                 Finally, we have a street furniture

         19  that blocks views and bizarre traffic patterns that

         20  cause confusion and dangerous situations.  These

         21  require a careful study of traffic flows and

         22  probably some prohibitions, and most certainly, the

         23  presence of traffic officers.

         24                 Community Board 4 is a strong

         25  advocate of pro- active study and planning.  We do
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          2  not believe in throwing up our hands and saying that

          3  nothing can be done.  We have called for the

          4  creation of a comprehensive multi level task force,

          5  including the community that we consider all factors

          6  effecting pedestrian safety, including driver

          7  education, enforcement, post accident procedures and

          8  penalties, infrastructure changes and where

          9  warranted, changes to City and State laws.  We hope

         10  you will join us in this effort to address a very

         11  real public health issue when it is crucial to the

         12  well being of our communities.  Thank you for the

         13  opportunity to speak.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         15  much, Mr. Compton.

         16                 You're all Community Board 4, so

         17  whatever order you'd like.

         18                 MS. BORTHET:  Good morning, Chairman

         19  Liu, Committee members and staff.  My name is

         20  Christine Borthet and I'm the co chair of the

         21  Transportation Committee of Manhattan Community

         22  Board 4.  Thank you for inviting us to testify, and

         23  thank you for your interest in Hell's Kitchen.

         24                 Pedestrian Safety has become a

         25  concern to Community Board 4 for many years and the
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          2  problem has amplified because we have so many

          3  recently influx of residential population.  Over the

          4  last five years, 9th Avenue has experienced over 500

          5  injuries in Clinton's Hell's Kitchen.  With 11

          6  intersections having significant increases, I'm

          7  talking about 80 percent to 200 percent increases.

          8  Indeed we have this federally funded study coming

          9  up, and to answer your question earlier, that study

         10  is starting in 2007 and will end in 2010, which

         11  gives us another three years to suffer through that

         12  situation.

         13                 I agree with everything that has been

         14  said before. Identifying structural problems at the

         15  worst intersection is a priority.  Specifically in

         16  our community we have 13 highway exits on our

         17  residential streets, and we have seven entrances to

         18  the Lincoln Tunnel and New Jersey accesses on 9th

         19  Avenue on Main Street.  And some of these accesses

         20  have been designed like highway ramps, which is

         21  absolutely inappropriate for local safety of

         22  pedestrians.

         23                 The most further recent truck study

         24  focuses centrally on signs, redesigning routes to

         25  take trucks away from pedestrian and accident prone
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          2  corridors and 15 and 16th Street remain a high

          3  priority.  My main concern though is really the

          4  community input.  Right now, what I heard from the

          5  DOT is really a different DOT than the one we are

          6  dealing with.  The community involvement is close to

          7  nil.  In the Safe Routes to School, the community

          8  was not consulted.  We were the second most

          9  dangerous school in Manhattan and we were last in

         10  our study.  The report with the school and the

         11  community, the DOT requested that the community not

         12  be present to the report.  And we request to, the

         13  DOT rejected that request.

         14                 On 37th and 9th, one more example,

         15  the Community Board 4 sent four letters over four

         16  years to the community.  Now we have somebody in

         17  hospital and all our requests have been denied.

         18                 So, what we really need is for the

         19  engineers to listen to the community with

         20  experiences built over thousands of on site

         21  observation, and for them to incorporate the

         22  community recommendation into their design.

         23                 Thank you for listening to the

         24  community.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Ms.
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          2  Berthet.

          3                 MR. BENFATTO:  Yes.  Hi.  I'll be

          4  very quick.  I'm Bob Benfatto, Jr.  I'm the District

          5  Manager to Community Board 4. And I'm just going to

          6  briefly mention the issue of enforcement because as

          7  the District Manager, I hold a monthly hearing, what

          8  are called District Service Cabinet meetings.  And a

          9  whole host of those meetings actually turn to the

         10  traffic enforcement in our area, which there are a

         11  great deal of summonses given.  But we have a host

         12  of traffic agents throughout 9th Avenue at certain

         13  times of the day during rush hour around the 40s and

         14  30s.  And one of the complaints I get in the office

         15  a lot is, although it's good to have them there and

         16  they direct the traffic and they are, by being

         17  there, they prevent a lot of things from occurring

         18  that people might normally have done if they didn't

         19  see a traffic agent there. They're not as pro-

         20  active as they could be.   A lot of times they just

         21  direct the traffic but then as the traffic starts

         22  moving smoothly, then you'll just see them standing

         23  on the side of the sidewalk or on the side of the

         24  street and letting the traffic go by.  And they

         25  don't really get out there and try and see if
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          2  anyone's illegally parked or check the cars.  I

          3  mean, there's not a pro- active element to it.

          4                 The other thing I would point out is

          5  that NYPD, this didn't come up when the Department

          6  of Transportation talked, has the traffic

          7  enforcement unit.  Apparently they meet once a month

          8  and they have what they call TrafficStat, which is

          9  based on CompStat, which the NYPD does, where they

         10  can maintain all the statistics of all the accidents

         11  that occur in a borough, and where the main problems

         12  have been for that month.  And then they use their

         13  resources and go in that direction.  It's the same

         14  theory. The Community Board doesn't get any of that

         15  information.  There's a guy I know I can call.  If I

         16  call him in Manhattan South, he might get it to me.

         17  I think it would be useful for your Committee and

         18  for Community Boards to get that information, the

         19  Traffic Stat stuff, so we can keep an eye on what

         20  the numbers are, statistic wise, where the accidents

         21  are occurring.  And therefore we can probably

         22  participate better.  We can see where resources

         23  representing it, where the issues and problems are.

         24                 Another thing I would just mention is

         25  I think that they need to do some long term
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          2  planning.  I know for example, in Downtown, they go

          3  to the construction that's occurring and they have

          4  the Lower Manhattan Construction Command Center,

          5  which is funded in the millions, in regards for

          6  traffic management and the operating costs.  Now to

          7  be parochial, my Community Board that I represent

          8  has the Hudson Yards Development, which is going to

          9  be about 40 million square feet of commercial and

         10  residential development, not mentioning the 20 some

         11  odd million of open space. When that construction

         12  starts, it's going to cause a great deal of traffic

         13  problems, and it would be nice that if the City

         14  would look at it the same way they looked at

         15  Downtown, and how they were going to handle that and

         16  perhaps put a center there, too.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Let me

         18  assure you that the Council is looking at that.  In

         19  fact, your Council member has a little bit of clout

         20  in this body.  So, she'll be looking for it, as

         21  well.

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  My colleague,

         23  David Diamond, the Chair of Community Board 5,

         24  regrets that he had to leave. He'll submit testimony

         25  in writing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU;  Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Our next panel will consist of

          5  Shirley Secunda, Kathleen Treat, Martin Treat and

          6  Herbert Rose.

          7                 Please come up to the witness table.

          8  They'll be followed by Renee Stanley, Susan Raskin,

          9  Deley Gazinelli and Elaine Abrams Schechter.

         10                 Ms. Secunda, please proceed.

         11                 MS. SECUNDA:  Thank you very much for

         12  your attention to this important matter.

         13                 My name is Shirley Secunda and I am

         14  the Vice Chair for the Traffic and Transportation

         15  Committee of Community Board 2, Manhattan.  We

         16  represent Greenwich Village, SoHo, NoHo, Hudson

         17  Square, Little Italy and parts of China Town.  And

         18  the following represents positions that we have been

         19  developing over the past several years in response

         20  to concerns with pedestrian safety.

         21                 New York is the quintessential

         22  pedestrian City. Unless they're physically

         23  challenged, all New Yorkers walk while only 44

         24  percent own cars.  Yet New York City's policies and

         25  as a result, its streets are disproportionately
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          2  skewed in favor of facilitating the movement of

          3  vehicular traffic at the expense of pedestrian

          4  safety, comfort and access.

          5                 Unfortunately, New York lags behind

          6  other cities around the world and around the

          7  country, in making pedestrian safety a priority.

          8                 Excessively wide streets, narrow

          9  sidewalks, dangerous intersections, poor street

         10  markings, inadequate signage, insufficient traffic

         11  lights and far too short pedestrian crossing times,

         12  are just some of the standard approaches that

         13  constantly endanger New York City's pedestrians.

         14                 In our own District 2, Manhattan,

         15  examples of these infringements on pedestrian safety

         16  and comfort abound, such as Washington Street, where

         17  traffic barrels through the corridor giving little

         18  opportunity for pedestrians to cross.  Seventh

         19  Avenue, where a host of complex intersections create

         20  confusion and hazardous maneuvering.  And Canal

         21  Street, where excessive congestion makes crossing

         22  difficult and creates emissions that pollute the air

         23  while, narrow sidewalks force pedestrians into the

         24  street,  Even in a new project, the reconstruction

         25  of Houston Street, our community has been unable to
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          2  convince the powers that to have left turns days

          3  eliminated, which will further endanger crossing

          4  pedestrians by narrowing down the center median to a

          5  point where people cannot stand there, and easing

          6  turns at higher speeds for motorists.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ms. Secunda, thank

          8  you very much and I see from your written testimony

          9  that there are some very detailed proposals which we

         10  will take a very close look at.  We do need to move

         11  things along just because we have people to hear

         12  from. I want to make sure everyone has a chance.

         13  Thank you very much for bearing with us.

         14                 Mr. Treat or Ms. Treat?

         15                 MR. TREAT:  We're here now so maybe

         16  we'll just talk together.  Kathy, ladies first.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, that would be

         18  quite an accomplishment.

         19                 MS. TREAT:  You go first.

         20                 MR. TREAT:  Oh, I've been deferred.

         21  I'm Martin Treat.  I'm representing the Clinton

         22  Hell's Kitchen Pedestrian Safety Coalition.  We call

         23  it CHEKPEDS, for short.  Check out our website.

         24                 I have distributed with my folder,

         25  our first presentation, if you take a look at my
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          2  hand in, you'll see this flyer for a presentation

          3  put together for us by Project for Public Space, one

          4  of the Transportation Alternative kind of people.

          5  And they've been helping our neighborhood for two

          6  months now having a ground up plan for presentation

          7  to the Department of Transportation and to this

          8  Committee.  So, I hope you have a chance to take a

          9  look at it next Tuesday.

         10                 Our coalition was formed about two or

         11  three years ago after many frustration attempted

         12  meetings with DOT.  And of the members surveyed,

         13  hundreds of them, and our Pedestrian Safety

         14  Coalition, hundreds of coalition members, well, 75

         15  percent of them, fear for their safety because of

         16  traffic, while only six percent fear for their

         17  safety because of crime.  So, our neighborhood has

         18  been turned quite differently around.

         19                 A neighbor chose a far away school

         20  she will have to drive to because she's too afraid

         21  to walk six blocks with her children on 9th Avenue

         22  every day to go to the local school, Holy Cross

         23  School.  And afraid she should be.  Holy Cross

         24  School is the second most dangerous walk in

         25  Manhattan to a school.
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          2                 These accidents are avoidable.  We

          3  vehemently oppose these measures by DOT.  They put

          4  in Ramp C on 9th Avenue, another access to the

          5  Lincoln Tunnel.  In 2003 and since then, we found

          6  three fold in increases in crashes on 42nd and 9th

          7  between 2002 and 2004.  Ramp C is between 36th and

          8  37th Street and we also found increase in traffic

          9  fatalities there.  This was avoidable.  We oppose

         10  measures, but did they listen?  No.  We are just

         11  community residents and parents being killed on our

         12  way to work or school. But as you have discovered

         13  today, we are not incompetent.  DOT is now

         14  listening.  But they waited a long time and many

         15  years to start.

         16                 Thank you, just another segment here.

         17    I just wanted to quote from the police precinct

         18  that we called about a recent fatality in February.

         19  We had two of them in February, 45th and 9th, 37th

         20  and 9th, and 16th and 9th.  When one of us called

         21  the precinct about one of those fatalities,  we were

         22  told that a contributing factor was that "the lady

         23  had an umbrella and she was not looking at the

         24  oncoming cars".  Never mind she was in a pedestrian

         25  crossing and had the walk sign.  The whole attitude
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          2  of the precincts and the DOT is to blame the

          3  pedestrian, even though 67 percent of those

          4  accidents are not caused by pedestrians, they're

          5  safely in the walk sign.

          6                 So, I thank you very much for letting

          7  me testify. And now my wife.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          9  Treat.

         10                 MS. TREAT:  Hi, I'm Kathleen Treat,

         11  Chair of the Hell's Kitchen Neighborhood

         12  Association.

         13                 This is my third time before your

         14  Committee, Chair Liu, thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thanks for coming

         16  back.

         17                 MS. TREAT:  Well, it's just time off

         18  work, like everybody else.

         19                 I have three points to make.  One is

         20  in the current budget for the City of New York, DOT

         21  has asked for 16 million bucks for vehicles.  Seems

         22  to me there are better ways to spend 16 million

         23  bucks.  It's not too late, I hope for us to ask you

         24  to please use your influence to have the Mayor

         25  appoint Janette Sadik Khan to head the DOT.  As
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          2  pedestrians' very lives are in the hands of DOT, we

          3  desperately need someone who will listen.

          4                 We need action.  We are now in a mind

          5  boggling fight with the City agency DOITT to remove

          6  double phone booths that block drivers' vision.

          7  This is on 10th Avenue and 9th Avenue.  Two

          8  pedestrians killed at one corner.

          9                 We are dominated by New Jersey

         10  drivers and we are fighting entrenched attitudes

         11  from agencies that are historically not pedestrian

         12  friendly, not citizen accessible.

         13                 Ask us.  That's all we ever asked of

         14  DOT.  Talk to us.  Talk to our community boards.

         15  There are solutions.  We need fewer cars.  We need

         16  serious enforcement.  We need driver education

         17  campaigns in New York, New Jersey and Connecticut

         18  for all the commuters who turn right on red.  For

         19  all the drivers who don't abide by the speed limit.

         20  We need genuine cooperation between residents, DOT,

         21  the Port Authority and NYPD.

         22                 You know, my neighborhood is

         23  absolutely dominated by the Port Authority.  And

         24  it's curious to me, do you hold hearings with those

         25  people, as well?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, we do.

          3                 MS. TREAT:  We do.  They don't talk

          4  to one another, these agencies.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, that's part

          6  of the problem. That's why we conduct these hearings

          7  and I certainly value-

          8                 MS. TREAT:  We need all of them

          9  together.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         11                 MS. TREAT:  Talking with us.  And

         12  thanks again. Thanks.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Thank

         14  you very much.

         15                 Let me ask our next panel to come up.

         16    Renee Stanley, Susan Raskin, Deley Gazinelli and

         17  Elaine Abrams Schechter.

         18                 We'll ask everyone to prepare to

         19  testify for two minutes.  And we will need to.

         20                 Ms. Stanley, please proceed.

         21                 MS. STANLEY:  Better Block

         22  Association, Hell's Kitchen.  On a beautiful May

         23  afternoon in 2000, my husband and I watched horror

         24  as a tour bus careened around the corner of 45th and

         25  9th, slammed into Randolph Walker, an actor who
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          2  lived in Manhattan Plaza.  Mr. Walker was flung

          3  nearly 60 feet.  Despite our best efforts at CPR,

          4  Mr. Walker died.  The bus driver said, he didn't see

          5  him.

          6                 In February of this year, another bus

          7  turned that same corner at 45th and 9th, struck and

          8  killed a second pedestrian in the crosswalk.  The

          9  bus driver said, he didn't see her.

         10                 Even a casual observer can identify

         11  the likely reason neither bus driver saw the

         12  pedestrian in the crosswalk, the enormous phone

         13  booth on 9th Avenue, just a few feet north of 45th

         14  Street.  Hell's Kitchen has become flooded with over

         15  sized phone booths.  And as admitted by the company

         16  who owns them, they are intended mainly for

         17  advertising, not communication.  The enormous bulk

         18  creates an effective wall that hides pedestrians

         19  from drivers. And money is being put before lives.

         20                 We need to reclaim New York City and

         21  return it to the pedestrian.  The ultimate solutions

         22  are going to take years to implement, but this City

         23  can lead the way with an aggressive effort to

         24  identify and eliminate the most immediate causes of

         25  pedestrian deaths, including the removal or
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          2  repositioning of phone booths and street furniture

          3  that block drivers' visions, and make innocent

          4  people targets.

          5                 I hope that DOT, DOITT and this

          6  Council will do the right thing and put the safety

          7  of New Yorkers above the almighty dollar, so that no

          8  other resident of Hell's Kitchen has to kneel beside

          9  the body of a neighbor and watch the light fade from

         10  their eyes.  Thank you for listening.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         12  much, Ms. Stanley. Would that be Mr. Gazinelli?

         13                 MR. GAZINELLI:  Yes.

         14                 Good afternoon.  My name is Deley

         15  Gazinelli and I'm the Executive Director of Chelsea

         16  Sculpture Park, founding member of my block

         17  association, 300 West 15th Street, and a 20 year

         18  Chelsea resident.

         19                 I would like to thank the New York

         20  City Council Committee on Transportation for holding

         21  this hearing, and Christine Quinn for inviting us to

         22  give our input this afternoon.

         23                 I'm here to address pedestrian safety

         24  in South Chelsea.  We have been asking DOT to

         25  address safety in my neighborhood since Giuliani was
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          2  Mayor.  During the last five years, I have been

          3  speaking persistently at Community Board 4 meetings,

          4  since a beloved elderly neighbor died as a result of

          5  a hit and run on 15th Street and 9th Avenue.

          6  Pedestrian accidents, especially on 9th Avenue on

          7  the corners of 14th, 15th and 16th Streets, have

          8  become common.  The last victim, and 82 year old

          9  neighbor, was killed instantly on February 5th as

         10  she made her way south across 16th Street on the

         11  east side of 9th Avenue.

         12                 I have also been mobilizing various

         13  organizations, including a number of block

         14  associations from 15th Street to 19th Street,

         15  seniors' groups, tenants's associations and the

         16  leadership of the 10th precinct to help find the

         17  solution to prevent additional traffic fatalities.

         18  Together, we have lobbied the DOT with an aggressive

         19  letter writing campaign to improve pedestrian safety

         20  in our community.

         21                 Last year, in response to one of our

         22  requests, Margaret Forgione, Manhattan Borough

         23  Commissioner, promised that this spring, traffic on

         24  9th Avenue between 16th and 14th Street will be

         25  changed to southbound only.  We hope that promise
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          2  will be honored.

          3                 Three studies have been done

          4  separately in Chelsea between 23rd Street.  DOT

          5  concluded a study on 9th Avenue, Joe Rose and the

          6  AIC Group paid for a study of an area, including

          7  19th Street, at the request of the State

          8  Transportation Agency.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Gazinelli,

         10  please wrap up, we do have your written testimony.

         11                 MR. GAZINELLI:  Yes.  There's been

         12  four studies, all these studies have been done

         13  separately, concentrating on limited areas in order

         14  to fulfill City and State building regulations,

         15  without proper coordination from the DOT.  Therefore

         16  individually, these studies do not provide an

         17  accurate picture of the traffic challenge in South

         18  Chelsea.

         19                 My hope is that this hearing will

         20  equip City Council and the DOT with guidelines, not

         21  only to coordinate studies already being done, but

         22  also create a coherent framework to include all the

         23  congested blocks in South Chelsea, in a much needed

         24  comprehensive and a long waited survey.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Thank
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          2  you very much, Mr. Gazinelli.  Thank you.

          3                 Ms. Schechter?

          4                 MS. SCHECHTER:  Yes.  I'm Elaine

          5  Abrams Schechter. I'm a citizen who was hit by a car

          6  on March 24th.

          7                 This is my folder on all the letters

          8  I've sent asking for safe streets.  Ignored.

          9  Ironically, exactly a month before I was hit, I sent

         10  a letter to Commissioner Kelly to which I have yet

         11  to receive a reply.

         12                 When I was hit, I had the white

         13  light.  The car made a swift right turn and hit me.

         14  The report says, erroneously, that the car went in

         15  back of me and brushed me.  The car went in front of

         16  me and hit me.  And I know there is a huge

         17  difference between in back and brushing, and in

         18  front and hitting.  The precinct refuses to amend

         19  the report.  It's two and a half weeks now, when I

         20  finally saw the policeman who wrote it, he came over

         21  to me, stood over me and screamed at me in a tirade

         22  that he was not changing the report. This morning, I

         23  saw the Commanding Officer who listened to my story,

         24  said the sketch shows that I was not hit and the car

         25  went in back of me.  And I said it's not true.  And
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          2  he said, I am not changing it, you can do an amended

          3  report yourself.

          4                 The attitude of the Police Department

          5  is, the pedestrian is never right.  The laws are not

          6  enforced.  You see a car blocking the crosswalk,

          7  policeman standing there, you say shouldn't that car

          8  get a ticket, he's blocking the crosswalk?  The

          9  policeman says, lady, move on, you're blocking the

         10  sidewalk. That's the answer you get.  If a car makes

         11  a quick turn, and you show the traffic officer who

         12  is standing there, they say, I've never seen a truck

         13  in the hospital, you be careful.  That is the

         14  attitude and the police are not here because they

         15  don't want to hear any of this.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         17  much.  We'd be happy to take the information down on

         18  your specific incident. Thank you.  Okay,

         19  immediately after this hearing.

         20                 Our last panel of witnesses, please

         21  come up.  That's Annalyn Barbier, Doug Korman,

         22  Dahlia something and Trina Semorile. Let me also

         23  invite all of the people who have come for today,

         24  this afternoon's Education Committee to take a seat,

         25  especially Deputy Chancellor Grimm and her staff.
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          2  Please feel free to stand back there or take your

          3  seat.

          4                 Ms. Barbier.  Please proceed.

          5                 MS. BARBIER:  Good afternoon.  My

          6  name is Annlyn Courtney Barbier.  I'm from Vision

          7  Services for the Blind.  I teach blind people how to

          8  travel, how to cross streets safely.  And I'm just

          9  going to stick to one thing that's in my written

         10  testimony. And that is the audible pedestrian

         11  signals.  Right now they're at a very limited number

         12  of locations and they're basically put up either

         13  because there is an agency for the blind in that

         14  area, and because the infrastructure exists to

         15  accommodate them.  And they're not being put up

         16  where they'd be of use, not only to people who are

         17  blind and visually impaired, but to other people in

         18  the area who because of bright sun or whatever,

         19  having difficulty seeing the walk, don't walk

         20  signals.

         21                 In addition, they're going to be more

         22  necessary as you were asking more signals to be

         23  computerized.  When traffic signals are

         24  computerized, you lose that predictable timing of

         25  when it's safe to cross.  And that means that the
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          2  blind person can't see when the walk light comes on

          3  for that protected phase where it will be safe to

          4  cross.  So, it would really be helpful if the

          5  Department of Transportation would work with others,

          6  such as agencies for the blind and consumers, to

          7  figure out where the best place is to put the

          8  audible traffic signals.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Mr. Korman?

         12                 MR. KORMAN:  Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Doug Korman.  I'm Co- founder of The Green

         14  Transporters Association. We're devoted to

         15  encouraging and educating and helping to set new

         16  standards for environmentally friendly

         17  transportation in this City and beyond.

         18                 Our mandate really is addressing

         19  right now the issues related to petty cabs and the

         20  regulation of petty cabs.  But our vision is far

         21  more broad- based.

         22                 Just as buildings in this City are

         23  now being considered in a smart and green way, we

         24  also need to address how we can better move people

         25  through our environment in a smarter and greener
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          2  way.  Now what we have in the City is a growing

          3  amount of traffic and particularly, the vehicular

          4  traffic poses all kinds of problems.  Our streets

          5  are essentially being turned into highways instead

          6  of local roadways.  And so as a result, we have

          7  problems with pedestrians and bicyclists being

          8  caught up in those roadways that are highways, and

          9  these larger vehicles that seem to be popularized,

         10  are far more hazardous and dangerous than a light

         11  weight low speed vehicle.   If we were to tune into

         12  what's going on at the Javit's Center right now, the

         13  car show has got a theme this year on taxis.

         14  They're focused on taxis.  And one of the things

         15  that they're excitedly promoting is a hydrogen taxi

         16  that can do 200 miles per hour.  Now why on earth

         17  would we need a taxi that does 200 miles per hour?

         18                 A few weeks ago, people were sort of

         19  turned into vegetables by a taxi.  Now, a petty cab

         20  is not going to actually cause this kind of harm to

         21  people, yet we have the legislators lined up ready

         22  to pass a bill that is flawed and defective in many

         23  different ways.  And you'll never see a petty cab

         24  running over people in a way where they're going to

         25  destroy their lives forever. The likelihood of petty
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          2  cabs and lightweight low speed vehicles for harming

          3  people in a way that they can't survive from the

          4  accident is very, very diminished.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Korman.  Thank you.

          7                 MR. KORMAN:  So, I would just

          8  encourage people to support the Mayor's override,

          9  excuse me, the Mayor's veto and oppose the override

         10  of 331A to politically motivated bill.  Thank you,

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Dahlia Duperroir.

         12                 MS. DUPERROIR:  Close enough.  Good

         13  afternoon, Chairman Liu.

         14                 My name is Dahlia Duperroir and I

         15  live in Hell's Kitchen.  I have first hand

         16  experience of traffic problems in Hell's Kitchen.

         17  About five years ago, I almost became a victim of a

         18  bus.  I had the right of way.  The driver, his turn

         19  onto 42nd and 9th Avenue as I was crossing.  I

         20  jumped back out of the way, not even thinking of

         21  oncoming traffic headed west on 42nd Street. Someone

         22  up there is looking out for me.  I am here to tell

         23  the tale.

         24                 The problem here in Chelsea Hell'

         25  Kitchen Clinton, we need desperately stronger
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          2  traffic enforcement, stronger police presence and

          3  the re- education of our police officers in traffic

          4  enforcement rules and regulations.  Whether they are

          5  patrol car officers or traffic officers, they need

          6  to cooperate with upholding the regulations and the

          7  traffic laws that have been further, have been for

          8  the pedestrian and for the drivers alike.  I have

          9  seen officers drive by and ignore violators.

         10                 The biggest problem here in Midtown

         11  Manhattan are the tour buses, taxi and limo services

         12  and the companies that run them.  These companies

         13  should be held accountable for the infractions of

         14  our traffic laws.  The companies need to educate

         15  their drivers on traffic rules and regulations here

         16  in the City. There should be zero parking on

         17  residential streets.  I was going to cross 45th

         18  Street and 9th Avenue.  I had to step way back from

         19  the curb.  The bus was coming onto 45th Street

         20  looking for a place to park.  This was on a Saturday

         21  afternoon.

         22                 These drivers do not look or care

         23  what is in their way.  I cross the streets here on

         24  9th Avenue, 10th and 11th Avenue. I feel like I am

         25  road kill.  Tour buses should be re- directed and
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          2  restricted from crossing on residential streets

          3  period.  No parking signs should be placed in the

          4  area, residential streets, excuse me, I lost my

          5  place.  No parking signs should be placed throughout

          6  the area (residential streets) to keep our City

          7  streets safer.  Also cameras, placement should be

          8  done and connected to the police stations to watch

          9  the perpetrators.  And our life should be more than

         10  a slap on the wrist and a ticket.  A motorized

         11  vehicle, commercial tour buses, cars can be used for

         12  betterment.  But misused and irresponsible operated

         13  can be and is a weapon in the wrong hands.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         15  much, Ms. Duperroir.

         16                 MS DUPERROIR:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Our final witness

         18  for today.  I want to thank all of the witnesses for

         19  bearing with us.  Ms. Semorile?

         20                 MS. SEMORILE:  My name is Trina

         21  Semorile and I'm a resident of Hell's Kitchen.  I'll

         22  skip most of my testimony and just give you the

         23  written copy. I do want to say that while I agree

         24  that something has to be done about the telephone

         25  booths in Hell's Kitchen, which DOITT has basically
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          2  dumped there for private profit, I do not believe it

          3  is the cause of the 45th Street accidents.  The

          4  cause of the accidents and the deaths of pedestrians

          5  is a direct consequence of buses and trucks

          6  illegally using 45th Street, 46th Street, 44th

          7  Street as thruways.  It is illegal for that bus to

          8  have turned the corner at 45th and 9th Avenue.  They

          9  had no business being on the block.  That's why that

         10  pedestrian died.

         11                 On my way here, I had a conversation

         12  with the, yet another, academy bus who was on my

         13  block.  I politely asked him not to use the block

         14  and his attitude was, I can do whatever I want. Who

         15  are you?  Who are the police?  Where's the

         16  regulation?

         17                 We are inundated and the DOT has

         18  flatly refused and the City has refused, as has the

         19  Police Department, to regulate traffic.  The police

         20  precinct at One Police Plaza told a friend of mine

         21  several years ago during the Giuliani

         22  administration, that they had been told by Giuliani

         23  not to interfere with commerce. Bloomberg has not

         24  only continued that policy, he has furthered it. The

         25  Police Department ignore complaints.
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          2                 I have had to argue with police on

          3  the sidewalk to get them to take action and

          4  frequently they simply ignore me.  And this

          5  Committee has got to start taking some action.  I am

          6  sick and tired of agencies saying it's not my

          7  problem, it's the other agency's problem.  You have

          8  to start instituting inter- agency cooperation.  You

          9  have to stop holding hearings about more dead

         10  pedestrians and do something.  I'm sick and tired of

         11  surveys and researches and going to DOT hearings and

         12  going to Transportation Committee hearings and

         13  writing letters and calling the police and calling

         14  companies.  And I will say, that it has not, I'll

         15  just finish up, it has not been sufficiently

         16  discussed in these hearings today, at least since

         17  I've been here, the degree to which the taxi and

         18  limousine commission is contributing to the problem

         19  through their refusal to enforce.  The last time I

         20  went down there and it is a hardship for me, and it

         21  was very time consuming, I had an administrative law

         22  judge tell me that my complaint about a driver that

         23  idled for nearly two hours on my block, was

         24  unimportant and it was no big deal and it wasn't

         25  serious.  And then he had the mitigated gaul to give
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          2  me an infantile, patronizing to authoritarian

          3  lecture on how I had no right to speak directly to

          4  the driver.  I should call the Police Department.  I

          5  should call the DOT.  I should call the T/LC.  All

          6  of whom ignore me.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think we get the

          8  point.  Thank you very much.

          9                 MS. SEMORILE:  Thank you.  Please,

         10  take action.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I want to thank the

         12  participants of today's Transportation hearing.  I

         13  want to let you know for the record that we have

         14  written testimony submitted by Susan Raskin of

         15  Mutual Redevelopment Houses and testimony from Mary

         16  Beth Kelly.

         17                 I want to thank the Chairman of the

         18  Education Committee, Robert Jackson, for his

         19  indulgence in our going over time.  And with that,

         20  this hearing of the City Council's Committee on

         21  Education is adjourned.

         22

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 1:21 p.m.)

         24

         25
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          2  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          3  SUSAN RASKIN

          4  MUTUAL DEVELOPMENT HOUSES, INC.

          5

          6                 Good morning.  My name is Susan

          7  Raskin.  I'm Chair of the Cooperative Council of

          8  Mutual Redevelopment Houses, commonly known as Penn

          9  South co- op.  (I am also speaking for Morris

         10  Benjamin, President of the co- op Board of

         11  Directors)

         12                 Our council is composed of 45 members

         13  representing over 5,000 residents in our 15 building

         14  complex.  We are considered a Naturally Occurring

         15  Retirement Community (NORC) with over 65 percent of

         16  our people 65 years or older.

         17                 Our thanks to the Committee on

         18  Transportation for allowing us to speak on the

         19  dangerous traffic conditions that pedestrians face

         20  in our Chelsea area.  Examples of the accidents that

         21  have occurred in 3006 with fatalities and near

         22  fatalities are:

         23                 1) April 30, 2006- 2 cabs collided on

         24  28th Street and 9th Avenue, with one cab then

         25  crashing into the Holy Church fence.
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          2                 2) August 2nd- Two cars crashed on

          3  28th Street and 9th Avenue, traveling at high speed,

          4  one car then ran into the bus shelter.

          5                 3) August 10th- A truck fatally

          6  struck a bicyclist between 28th and 29th Streets on

          7  9th Avenue.

          8                 4) August 25th- A middle- aged couple

          9  were struck by a southbound car on 28th Street and

         10  9th Avenue resulting in one fatality and one serious

         11  injury.

         12                 5) November 15th-  near miss accident

         13  for Mrs. John Stern while crossing 26th Street by a

         14  taxi speeding around the corner from 9th Avenue.

         15                 Long with our written report to you,

         16  we have included copies of letters from our Council

         17  members to our Board of Directors and a letter from

         18  our Board President. Morris Benjamin, to Manhattan

         19  D.O.T. Commissioner Margaret Forgione; Community

         20  Board 4; Council Speaker Christine Quinn; and the

         21  Transportation Alternatives.  Also attached is a

         22  letter from Community Board 4 to the D.O.T. With

         23  specific recommendations to resolve these problems.

         24  Also, a copy of a letter from Commissioner Forgione

         25  offering a partial solution.  However, the major
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          2  problem od the dangerous left turn crossings on 9th

          3  Avenue and 24th, 26th and 28th Streets and at 8th

          4  Avenue at 29th Street, has not been addressed.

          5  Community Board 4 also requested that D.O.T.

          6  Undertake speed and car counts along the streets and

          7  report back to the Penn South Board of Directors and

          8  to Community Board 4 to better guide what additional

          9  measures might be warranted.  Our council

         10  representatives have also met with Police leadership

         11  in the 10th Precinct that resulted in extra car

         12  patrols and increased ticketing in our area.

         13                 The community traffic problems still

         14  exist, and a Band- Aid solution will not do.  An

         15  overhaul of traffic rules and regulations are

         16  needed.

         17                 Thank you.

         18

         19

         20

         21  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         22  MARY BETH KELLY

         23  NEW YORK, NEW YORK

         24

         25                 I wish I could be present at this
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          2  hearing to express myself in person, but my work as

          3  a clinical social worker, psychotherapist, being a

          4  newly singled parent, and preparing a meaningful

          5  memorial for my husband of thirty three years keeps

          6  me working all day.

          7                 My name is Mary Beth Kelly and there

          8  are a few issues in this City today that I care

          9  about more deeply about than the safety of the

         10  ordinary person on the streets of New York.  With

         11  pedestrian deaths from vehicular crashes averaging

         12  one every other day, it is time for us all to wake

         13  up.  Do we need this tragedy to strike someone in

         14  the city council personally before a leader steps

         15  forward on this subject?  Sometimes that is what it

         16  takes.  I hope not, because I would not wish the

         17  rupture of family, the unbearable trauma of loss

         18  that myself and my children have carried this year

         19  to be suffered by anyone else.  As I write this

         20  though, I know it may just be a matter of hours, or

         21  days at most, before the next unsuspecting mother,

         22  child, brother, or grandfather is cut down, and a

         23  family is thrown into such terrible grief.

         24                 My husband, Dr. Carl Henry Nacht, age

         25  56, was hit and killed by an NYPD tow truck as we
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          2  bicycled on a greenway in the hudson River Park.

          3  Even there we were not safe from reckless

          4  endangerment.  The absence of law enforcement, the

          5  haphazard surveillance by police of acts of crimes

          6  against pedestrians and cyclists, and the reckless

          7  speeds at which vehicles travel and transgress in

          8  cross walks are all factors that create the

          9  crippling or premature death of our citizens.  It is

         10  striking how often these victims were people whose

         11  lives were exemplary.  The ways they can no longer

         12  contribute toward making our urban environment a

         13  more meaningful society is part of our collective

         14  loss.

         15                 My husband was a general internist,

         16  who for thirty years treated patients, taught

         17  Columbia University medical students, and directed

         18  multiple general medical practices of younger

         19  physicians.  He was a beloved doctor, teacher,

         20  mentor and leader.  He was a cherished coach of

         21  little league, soccer and basketball.  He was a

         22  father of two, an uncle of fifteen nieces and

         23  nephews, and a friend to thousands of New Yorkers.

         24  He also happened to hold the record for the most

         25  consecutive and fastest run marathons, 29 in total
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          2  and working towards 30 when he was killed.

          3                 Where is the vision?  Who will lead?

          4  Who amongst you will stand up well to those who

          5  benefit by using up the city's resources and assume

          6  we can pay the price of everyday tragedy?  You don't

          7  have to re- invent the wheel to get going on this

          8  issue. Other American and Foreign cities are out

          9  ahead of us who walk, ride bikes, travel by public

         10  transportation to work and home, in this, a city

         11  that could be great.  Not the short sided 1930's

         12  boast of the automobile as king, but in a 21st

         13  century kind vision for living; one that is cleaner,

         14  greener, and conducive to the safety and health of

         15  its current citizens and the ones that may come here

         16  because we are leaders in offering our inhabitants a

         17  finer quality of life.

         18                 Our very own Transportation

         19  Alternatives has written the Pedestrian Safety

         20  Action Plan, a comprehensive and incredibly smart

         21  plan to address and interrupt the achingly

         22  predictable cycle of violence on our streets.

         23  Please, keep in mind that what happened to my family

         24  could happen to yours!

         25
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          2  Mary Beth Kelly, A.C.S.W.

          3  310 Riverside Dr. #1707

          4  New York, NY  10025.

          5

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 1:21 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, JANICE BERNHART, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 11th day of April 2007.
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